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Chairman’s
Statement
EFRHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to present to shareholders the
annual report of VST Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2014.

FANEBERRESEOARIRMRARZBGHERSE

FE/‘\
BEEZ=

In the challenging and fast changing IT landscape, the Group again recorded
outstanding performance in the previous year, in which revenue and earnings
hit another record high. The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31
December 2014 was HK$41,892,709,000 (2013: HK$40,239,286,000).
Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
HK$1,672,674,000 (2013: HK$1,516,958,000). Net profit for the year ended
31 December 2014 amounted to HK$625,668,000 (2013: HK$525,127,000).
Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
HK40.59 cents (2013: HK33.77 cents) per share.

In order to cope with strategic transformation and adapt to the ever-changing
IT industry, the Group endeavored to expand valued-added services of
Enterprise Systems in 2014 which successfully lifted up the operating margin
from 1.76% in 2013 to 2.01% in 2014 and achieved effective control of
operation cost, as demonstrated by the reduction from 2.15% in 2013 to 2.01%
in 2014. In the vigorously competitive IT market, the Company generally
maintained the momentum of high gear growth. During the year, revenue
from the Distribution segment decreased by 4.32% to HK$30,573,837,000,
contributing 72.98% of the total Group revenue. Revenue from the Enterprise
Systems segment increased by 37.65% to HK$11,100,914,000, contributing
26.5% of the total Group revenue, mainly driven by higher sales of servers,
networking hardware and software products. Revenue from [T services
remained stable at HK$217,958,000, contributing 0.52% of the total Group
revenue.
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Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in the
year ended 31 December 2014. During the year, revenue generated in North
Asia increased by 5.43% to HK$33,195,293,000, contributing 79.24% of the
total Group revenue. The growth was mainly from the increased sales of
servers, hard disks, networking hardware and software products. Revenue
from South East Asia decreased by 0.64% to HK$8,697,416,000,
contributing 20.76% of the total Group revenue. The growth was mainly
attributable to higher sales of Enterprise Systems services, networking
hardware and software products.

The Group has also benefited from the emergence of internet resellers in both
North Asia and South East Asia. Total revenue generated from internet
resellers amounted to HK$2,648,396,000 (2013: HK$2,033,690,000),
contributing 6.32% of the total Group revenue.

The Group enjoyed yet another outstanding year. Leveraging on our
diversified products and strong distribution network, the Group further
improved its product range through the successful expansion of game
business last year by obtaining dealership of Xbox from Microsoft and
Playstation from Sony. Meanwhile, our distribution channels in Asia Pacific
were strengthened by venturing into emerging countries which include
Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos. The Group has strong distribution networks
with over 33,000 business partners in nine countries, covering China,
Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Cambodia, Myanmar, Laos and the
Philippines. Besides, our businesses have also extended from the distribution
of IT products for the commercial and consumer markets to the provision of
enterprise systems tools for [T infrastructure, training, maintenance and
support services. Our diversified product lines include HP, Apple, Seagate,
AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco,
Asus and many more.

PROSPECTS

Facing the ever-changing IT industry, the Group will continue to control costs,
enhance profitability, constantly look for breakthroughs and build up the long-
term competitiveness to stay ahead of the market. In addition to the
expansion of mobile internet products, storage solutions and cloud
computing, the Group will also provide the 020 (Offline-to-Online) services to
corporate customers and consumers through the integration and innovation
of advanced information technologies including internet, end-to-end solutions
and mega data.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE (B

Through the integration of acquired business in the previous years, the Group
fully acquired ECS Holdings Limited (which is listed in Singapore). The
successful integration will put the Company on the track of high growth.
Benefiting from our well-established relationships with vendors, sizeable
regional network, rigorous internal processes and strong management team,
the Company is set to reach even newer heights. Despite the evolving
industry and various challenges posed by market conditions, the Group will
still be able to maintain its robust growth. In addition to the expansion for
emerging markets in South East Asia, the Group will increase our market
share in countries such as Indonesia and China and put greater effort in
stepping up value-added services such as Enterprise Systems business and
thus enhancing the profitability.

I would like to thank our shareholders for their loyal support for the Group. |
would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to all
of our staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion towards their duties
and to thank our Board members and business partners for their trust and
support. We are confident in overcoming various challenges ahead and will
make the best effort to maximise returns for our shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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Business Model and Strategic Direction

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base. The
Group has 81 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos. The three
main businesses are Distribution, Enterprise Systems and IT Services. The
Enterprise Systems segment designs, installs and implements IT infrastructure
for companies, while the IT Services segment provides a comprehensive
range of professional, technical support and training services. Leading IT
vendors such as HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the
Group’s network of over 33,000 channel partners in the region to distribute
their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 25 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 33,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

o Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
o Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DN

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
HK$41,892,709,000 (2013: HK$40,239,286,000). The Group has shown
stability in the Distribution segment, where sales of mobility devices, hard
disks and CPUs remain strong. In the Enterprise Systems segment, we have
seen growth in sales of servers, networking hardware and software products.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
HK$1,672,674,000 (2013: HK$1,516,958,000). Operating profit for the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to HK$843,897,000 (2013:
HK$707,086,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to HK$625,668,000 (2013: HK$525,127,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to HK40.59 cents (2013:
HK33.77 cents) per share.

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to
provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product
lines now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.

Prospects

The shift towards mobile devices such as smartphones and tablets will
continue to drive growth for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies
to increase market shares as well as the range of products offered. This will
enable the Group to continue to focus on growth in both the Distribution and
Enterprise Systems segments.

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and Indonesia and at
the same time, expand into new countries such as Cambodia, Myanmar and
Laos. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand our
business into mobility devices and cloud computing.
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With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$1,495,111,000 (2013: approximately HK$1,168,535,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$3,557,276,000 (2013: approximately HK$2,698,573,000).
The gearing ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity, was 0.52 (2013: 0.42).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$12,237,737,000 (2013: approximately
HK$10,674,289,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$9,092,165,000 (2013: approximately HK$7,158,806,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the total
current liabilities, was approximately 1.35 times as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
approximately 1.49 times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$3,620,400,000 as at 31 December 2013 to approximately
HK$3,992,958,000 as at 31 December 2014,

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EIRE Wk DA ()

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases and a building pledged against secured mortgage loan
as set out in notes 5 and 19 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 2,300 (2013: 2,136) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement
schemes. The net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately HK$415,243,000 (2013: approximately
HK$435,983,000). The Group also provides training courses or seminars to
its staff.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2014
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for
some code provisions which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of four Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Li
Mr. Liang Xin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Ng Yat Cheung

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Appointed on 16 June 2014)

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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Pursuant to Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer
must have at least three independent non-executive directors and at least
one of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and is required to appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board and pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the Audit Committee of every listed issuer must have at least
three members, at least one of whom is an independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Following the passing away of Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter who was an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 17 March
2014, the Company does not meet the requirements under Rules 3.10, 3.10A
and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Subsequently, on 16 June 2014, Mr. Lam Hin
Chi has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company for replacement of all the positions previous held by Dr. Chan Po
Fun Peter. Upon the appointment of Mr. Lam Hin Chi as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, the Company has met the
requirements under Rules 3.10, 3.10A and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (E)

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31
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December 2014 is set out below: EEHFEESER2BERAERINAT :
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
Directors B2E HE " BITEBERY
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMEE 5/5
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William FEFTEE 5/5
Ms. Chow Ying Chi AL 5/5
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau BRI % A& 5/5
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Liu Li 2 F 2z + 5/5
Mr. Liang Xin 2R A& 4/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAIFHTES
Mr. Li Wei TREAE 5/5
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung SRHE%E 5/5
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Appointed on 16 June 2014) ?ﬁéﬁ%?ﬁ@;m:z MERATRBEE) 3/3
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014) R X+ (R —ME= A ++ B EEt) 0/0
Practices and Conduct of Meetings EEPREEITAN
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally BEFAEHBEREBACE 2 EHZRE K

made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are served
to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (E)

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will
be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Ong
Wei Hiam, William, Ms. Chow Ying Chi, Mr. Liang Xin and Mr. Li Wei, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 May
2014 due to other important engagements. All other directors had attend the
2014 annual general meeting to answer questions an collect views of
shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same person
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the Directors and
the management of the Company and considers that this structure will enable
the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. The
Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific months
of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment of
Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lam Hin
Chi will retire from office and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. In accordance with
Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam,
William, Ms. Chow Ying Chi and Mr. Li Wei will retire from office and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Board has recommended the re-appointment
of the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company’s circular contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (E)

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars or reading relevant materials
and provided a record of training they received during the year to the
Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2014 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and

compliance procedures, and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set out
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HE/BITEBERE
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) EBEBLLE ()

(Appointed on 16 June 2014) (RZZE—WFASNA+TEBZF) 1/2
Mr. Li Wei FREE 2/2
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RHERE 2/2
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter BRES1E+

(Deceased on 17 March 2014) (RZZE—NF=A++EHBH) 0/0
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (E)

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration policy;
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2014 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of the
directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be
made.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive H M ZEE @B E =L B L IEHNITEE (@R
Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee fKEHEHMEE @@ 2B REYWMT -
meeting is set out below:
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HE I BITEBRE
Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) FTREE(ERE) 11
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAELEAE 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Appointed on 16 June 2014) EEBAERZ —Ei*\ +BZE) 1/1
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014) fRE i+ (R -_ZE—MFE=F++ B EH) 0/0
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become board members, assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31
December 2014 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HE BITEBERE

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) FEMEE(EE) 11
Mr. Li Wei 248 o 11
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAESE 11
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Appointed on 16 June 2014) EEBLIER-ZZT—NFEFATABEE) 0/0
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014) & & 25 {8 + (75":? MFE=R+tHEt) 0/0
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TEERBE ()

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the ’Independent
Auditor’s Report’.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$5,782,000 and HK$1,114,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such on a semi-annual basis through the Audit
Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The internal control framework also
provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and risks,
develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified risks,
and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.
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The Directors have conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function as
well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to purpose a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.
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TEERBE ()

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. To
safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be voted
by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 53, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr. Li is also
the director of VST Computers (H.K.) Limited (“VST
Computers”), a subsidiary of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall management and strategic
positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of China
with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and
a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986. Mr. Li is the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li, an Non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 43, is an Executive
Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Ong is also the director of VST
Computers and an Executive Director and the Group
Chief Executive Officer of ECS Holdings Limited (a
public listed company on the Main Board of the
Singapore Stock Exchange until 23 February 2015),
both are the subsidiaries of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics
from University College London and a Master Degree in Analysis, Design &
Management of Information Systems from the London School of Economics
and Political Science. Mr. Ong is a member of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants in England and Wales, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. CHOW Ying Chi, aged 46, is an Executive
Director and the Group Chief Operating Officer of the
Company. Ms. Chow has been working with the
Group since 1996. Ms. Chow started working in
business development for the East and North China
region and was appointed as operation director of the
Company in 2002. Currently, Ms. Chow is the director
of VST Computers and the executive director of ECS
Technology (China) Limited (“ECS China”), both are
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chow is responsible

for the overall business operations and management of VST Computers, and
operation review and management of the development in ERP solution for
ECS China. Ms. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honours) in
International Business from the University of Huddersfield in the United
Kingdom.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDPAMEERE (F)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 45, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United
States of America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in personal computer and semiconductor
industry. Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice
President — Product Management of VST Computers,
an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Prior to joining the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served
as the Distribution Director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in charge of
the distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. LIU Li, aged 51, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2011. Ms. Liu was
one of the founders of the Group and had been
responsible for the overall operations of the Group’s
business in the mainland China from 1991 to 1999
before the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
in 2002. Ms. Liu holds a bachelor degree in Beijing
Construction Engineering University. Ms. Liu is the
spouse of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. LIANG Xin, aged 43, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in December 2013.
Mr. Liang graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the
Department of Statistics of the Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of
- China in 1992. Mr. Liang obtained a Master Degree in
Finance from the Xiamen University in the PRC in
2005. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Liang has held various
positions in the PRC government and the private
sector. Mr. Liang has worked as a section officer in the Division of Human
Resources and Education of Fujian Provincial Department of Finance. Mr.
Liang has also worked as a section officer in #@2% BT E A 7] (Fujian
Huaxing Trust and Investment Company Limited). Mr. Liang has worked as a
head of general office in FEMFEZ (Huaxing Securities Company Limited)
(“Huaxing Securities”) and has held the position of general manager in the
Research and Development Department, the Securities Trading Department
and the Investment Banking Department in Huaxing Securities where he was
responsible for the stock and futures trading and investment banking
businesses. Mr. Liang has participated in a number of initial public offering,
listing recommendation, reorganisation and acquisition and distribution work
in the PRC. Since June 2004, Mr. Liang has served as head of investment
department, secretary of the board of directors, and vice president in
Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (Z 31|76 25 38 fH i
R%(D B PR A 7)), the issued shares of which are listed in the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 60, was educated in the PRC,
Germany and Australia. He has over 20 years of
experience in establishing and operating businesses in
Asia, particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li
has previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has
been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2007. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and members of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDPAMEERE (F)

Mr. NG Yat Cheung, JP, aged 59, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in September 2011. Mr. Ng holds an Associate Degree
in Arts in Business Data Processing from Chabot
College in the United States. Mr. Ng holds offices as
director with a number of private companies which are
principally engaged in technology, property
development, finance and property holding. Mr. Ng is
also an independent non-executive director of China
Agri-Products Exchange Limited, Tao Heung Holdings
Limited and Jia Meng Holdings Limited, the shares of all the companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the
members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 50, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 25 years
of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Mr. Lam currently is an
independent non-executive director of Merry Garden Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also
serves as the Chairman of Audit Committee and members of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 34, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in
Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the Group
in December 2009.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of information technology (“IT”) products
and the provision of enterprise systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2014 represented
approximately 16.5% (2013: approximately 18.9%) of the Group’s total
turnover, and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 28.2% (2013: approximately 27.4%) of the Group’s total
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2014,

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2014
represented approximately 26.8% (2013: approximately 25.5%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 70.7% (2013: approximately 74.5%) of the
Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2014.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 51.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2014 of HK11.8 cents per ordinary share (2013: HK8 cents).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 53 and note 16 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$97,010,000 (2013: approximately
HK$182,999,000). In addition, the Company’s share premium account as at
31 December 2014, in the amount of approximately HK$834,674,000 (2013:
approximately HK$758,001,000), may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares in accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 140.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company repurchased
1,096,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by

the Company are as follows:

No. of shares
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1,096,000 1,820,800
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2014 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Li
Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Ng Yat Cheung

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Appointed on 16 June 2014)

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014)

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lam Hin
Chi will retire and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In accordance with Article 87 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, Wiliam, Ms. Chow
Ying Chi and Mr. Li Wei will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific months
of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board but
subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2014 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out on
pages 27 to 30.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

A=+—H8 XARAIE=SE
S AR X B S H AT AR B R &
(THERBELHELBEEMN(FBEAGEST1E)
([ %&Hﬁiﬂmﬁm%xv%)zm&@~Wéﬂﬁ
MBABEEEPHREREZS R EHFEHEXV
HETRSD FBME AN R T KB 2 s
AR (BEESREES MNBEIR fﬁu;z:
BEXWEEREABEEZES N KR
N/ AR ANKRR BB EE ﬁ&ﬁﬁ ﬂﬂﬁu%
B TFEzERMzEE AR B L
MRAEME KRR T g&ﬁﬁmféﬁé&i%ﬁ:
wm

RARB R R BEERGD 2ER

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BFEERRS EARRAE BT
EEnR B#RRE g7 HEROGBE REAZHBNBEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 67,323,200 4.41%
FEMEE e EmEE A
Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%
A BEmEA A 1,800,000 17 & A% 12
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.04%
corporation
o=y R EEES 290,340,000 (At 7 1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 (Note 2) 13.39%
e BN 204,309,600 (At 7#2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 249,600 0.02%
TEAEE e EmEEA
Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.09%
HE EmfEAA 1,440,000 17 B A% 1
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEZBERA EARRBE BT
EEpnA B"%RE 54 HEROBE RAZHBANBEIL
Ms. Chow Ying Chi Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.09%
WREZ L A BEmEAA 1,440,000 17 B A% 1
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.09%
BRI IM & &= e EmBEA A 1,440,000 15 & A% &
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 13.39%
ZF %+ oA EHEEA
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.04%
corporation
S REXE S 290,340,000 (Kf#F 1)
Long Family interest 67,323,200 (Note 3) 4.41%
) EN Eo 67,323,200 (Af:£3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 Share options (Note 4) 0.12%
e ENI 1,800,000 17 & I # (K7t 4)
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 240,000 Share options 0.02%
FlEELE e EREAA 240,000 & A 1
Notes: et -
1. 290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued 1. PN/ ETéZ 2\99,340,AO‘QOH;<CL HXQ@ EE L&L Limiited 55
share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li. A M A % EHE RTBRAEFEMS
ERERBRAZ T HERE -

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of Mr. Li

Jialin.

3. 67,328,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of Ms.

Liu Li.

4, 1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of

Ms. Liu Li.

2. XA 7] 2 204,309,600 8% A% 15 B EEM L E 2

B2 L LHE -

3. RNARF 267,323 200 M B BIFI L L Z BB

FEMEERE -

4. A8 A ) 21,800,000 17 B8 A% # i 2 ) 22 + 2 B2

BEEMRELESE -

BAZKRERLF

T -FFR
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (ontinueq)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors nor
the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2014, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting

of any other members of the Group:

Directors’ Report (continued)
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RZT—WNE+_A=+—B HEEFHMA
AT AT RAR R A 2 B K& 5 18 Bl B 47 &
BERBESFRPE RO EXVEE2R37 &
ZHEXEMARNRARBRAEBE 2 BRERS
IKBE R/ ERALRLRAREZESRBE
Bl 5336117 B 2 B 2 it 2 # &= &3k
B R/SERMBERREAEEMBRITRA
SEEMEMKERARAZRRAGLEER
Efo] J2 Bl AR 7S o B 4 ok il B B B TEI (B 5% 3 BA
Mg 30

Number of Approximate

Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
EEpg KA 56 REZERSEEROEE BMHARET DL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 67,323,200 4.41%
FEMEE HE EmEB A
Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%
=) EmEE A 1,800,000 17 i % ##
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.04%
corporation
e REEE S 290,340,000 (Af7# 1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 (Note 2) 13.39%
A Kk = 204,309,600 (A7t 2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 13.39%
2IF &+ HE EmlA A
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.04%
corporation
=) RPEEE S 290,340,000 (#f7# 1)
Long Family interest 67,323,200 (Note 3) 4.41%
A R e HE i 67,323,200 (fff5£3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 Share options (Note 4) 0.12%
S ERi X 1,800,00017 & A #8 (Kff 72 4)
BUHERERAT T HEFH
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures ontinueq)

- R RGN R
) 9 -%¢ )
Number of

Approximate

Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
BEEnE %A g4 BEZERIEEROBE BHRET D
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 290,340,000 (Note 5) 19.04%
we EmlEAA 290,340,000 (¥ 7£5)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 242,211,998 (Note 6) 15.88%
HE BEmfEAA 242,211,098 (Wit i#6)
Y tat Mt EER D BR AR Long Interest of a controlled 242,211,998 (Note 7) 15.88%
corporation
e REEE S 242,211,998 (Pt 7#7)
TG mIR B AR A A Long Interest of a controlled 242,211,998 (Note 8) 15.88%
corporation
A RYEEE S 242,211,998 (Ft it 8)
Mr. Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 242,211,998 (Note 8) 15.88%
corporation
JE] B 928 o A e RELEER 242,211,998 (fti#8)
R EE O RTT Long Security interest 242,211,998 (Note 9) 15.88%
in shares
e it £ 45 19 4 o 242,211,998 (Fiti#9)
PR EEER IR Long Interest of a controlled 242,211,998 (Note 9) 15.88%
ZE® corporation
=) XA E R 242,211,998 (Fti#9)
Fidelity Long Investment manager 163,755,600 10.74%
A AL
Ntasian Discovery Master Fund Long Beneficial owner 109,325,600 717%
A BEmEA A
Mutual Funds Elite Long Custodian corporation 89,900,400 5.89%
HE G =W/NG]
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures ontinueq)

Notes:

1. 290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of Mr. Li
Jialin.

3. 67,328,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of Ms.
Liu Li.

4, 1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

5. The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and
his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

6. The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by &3I4

SRHRERENBRAR.

7. 38.65% of the shares of &Y 1a TRk ESEAR (/D BR A are held by ZIIT
(RIS BT R AR AR

8. 94% of the shares of J&IIITIAZE@AITEIEAR AR AF are held by Mr. Zhou
Guohui.

9. The entire issued share capital of # E#E H [ 4217 is held by BB #% B E

EEEERLES.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting
of any other members of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.
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Share Options

(@) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 17
April 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Further details of

the Scheme are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, no share options have been granted or
cancelled. Details of the share options movement under the Scheme

are as follows:

B

(@)

NN SR

ARREZZEZE-_FHA+EHEMN—
EERETE (&S BEREE
g2 EEABRNEBED 2T BRI E
Mz e ZFrElcE—TPHFBRERIB
WERMFEIEA -

ERBEFEARN BEEAERERERD
SEtiH e ZATEI T BREZEHF BN
T

As at Lapsed Exercised As at Exercise
Name or category of 1 January during the during the 31 December price per
participant Date of offer 2014 year year 2014 share (HK$) Exercise period
R-Z—NF R-Z2—NFE SRITEE
SHEEMAHER EXNBH —HA—H FREMK FRTE +=A=+—H (&) 1TEEH
Directors
=
Mr. Li Jialin 23/03/2011 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000 2.028 23/03/2013 —
FEME E 22/03/2021
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William  23/03/2011 1,440,000 - — 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013 —
FRITEE 22/03/2021
Ms. Chow Ying Chi 17/02/2011 1,440,000 — — 1,440,000 2.227 17/02/2013 —
BWHREL L 16/02/2021
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 23/03/2011 1,440,000 — — 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013 —
BRI 5 & 22/03/2021
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 240,000 - - 240,000 2.028 23/03/2013 —
FREELE 22/03/2021
Sub-total /N5t 6,360,000 - - 6,360,000
Employees and others 17/02/2011 & 11,280,000 (480,000) (240,000) 10,560,000 2.227 &2.028 17/02/2013 -
(Note) 23/03/2011 22/03/2021
BERHAM
(Bt7)
Total #5t: 17,640,000 (480,000) (240,000) 16,920,000

Note: 240,000 share options of the Company held by Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter,
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, lapsed as he

passed away on 17 March 2014.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Share OptiOHS (continued)

(b)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS Holdings
Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, adopted a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (the “Scheme II”) on 13 December 2000
whereby the directors of ECS are authorized, at their discretion, to
invite ECS’s employees and directors, including non-executive directors
of ECS and its subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe for shares
of ECS. The scheme ceased to be in force upon the successful
privatisation of ECS by the Company in February 2015.

During the year under review, no share options have been granted.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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b) PHE2AEEREE —ENR
MEERAT (TERARE]D

ARBAZHMBRAAEAMBENR _-_TEE
FT-A+=AKMA—ABERETSE —
EARR BRSNS - =it
EAMREFERERNBRESENRK
ZEREREE(BREEANMKRENE
RAZFATER)ERATRBENN
BB ZBRE RARRAR_F—F
FZRARDILBRERNRRKIE  Zatd
ETHEXK -

ERBEFERN BETAOBREESR

Details of the share options movement under the Scheme Il are as e stBEINT 2 EREZHFBENOT
follows:
Cancelled/
Lapsed
Exercised during the As at Exercise
Name or category of As at during the year 31 December price per
participant Date of offer 1 January 2014 year (Note) 2014 share (S§)  Exercise period
FR
R-Z-—WF 2 AN R=ZZ-—NFE BSRITEE
SHEEREZRE EHBEH —A—-B FRTE (ftz) +=ZBR=+—8 (HFmEx) FTEH
Directors
=)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 15/10/2010 300,000 — (300,000) — 0.55 5 years from date of
grant
FEFEE SR I=R:cF ks
Employees and others 15/10/2010 10,250,000 (3,530,000) (6,720,000) — 0.55  5to 10 years from
date of grant
BERHA BEE B R
5Z&104
Total 48 5t: 10,550,000  (3,530,000) (7,020,000) -

Note: The Company had made an offer to acquire all the issued and paid-up
ordinary shares in the capital of ECS including the outstanding options.
Upon the acceptance of the offer, all the outstanding options were
cancelled and lapsed.

Wi ARBEELZHUBKBERNRRZ
RARFABECRTRARERER B
HARITEABRE - RESEOR - M
BHRARITENBERES WA -

BAZRERQIA —T-HFFRH
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 31 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis and
the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less
than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 28 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2014 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015

DWeckws’Repoﬂ(conﬁnued)

Eéiﬁi nﬁ

EEREREEEME

EEhE
M 5E28 o

EREZHMEHMEERNPBRER

NREREZTEM

ERNARBAAHESZERNALAEEMN
M- ARBERBE-_FT-OF+-A=+
—BUEREFEANESEHNRIRFTRE -

A\ A s s
TEER
TEEAFBHRAFTRIGEEGRE] —
& o

BRERET

AARBEZTE—NF+_A=+—BIEF
EZ&%%%%EE%& ESEN B
ZECRAZSEBE I REFABEA 2SS
R RBE VWEELHROEE -

B BLEm

AEBEBE_T-NE+_A=1+—HLF
EZUHBBRRCHEFTHRESAMELME
%o mERARREREBRRAFRE LRE
WRFEERRBAREETR -

REEEZS
FTIERITHAAZ

FEM

B —RFE=ZATNH

BAZKRERLF — P E R

45



46

Independent Auditor’s Report

B M % BED ¥

RN

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VST Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 48 to 139, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEEREER

As at 31 December 2014 A ZZE—WF+ A =+—H

2014 2013
—E-F —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5T THT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEKE 5 117,612 115,747
Goodwill RS 6 324,001 333,052
Interest in associates REE R AR R 9 322,780 315,467
Interests in a joint venture REELENER 10 67,385 23,041
Deferred expenses EER X 11 5,876 11,488
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEE 18 54,033 54,578
891,687 853,373
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H AW RIE 11 7,657,514 6,861,304
Inventories FE 12 3,085,112 2,644,450
Cash and cash equivalents ReLHEEEEBY 13 1,495,111 1,168,535
12,237,737 10,674,289
Total assets BMEE 13,129,424 11,527,662
EQUITY E=
Share capital % 7 14 152,519 149,404
Reserves E 1 3,802,206 3,239,094
3,954,725 3,388,498
Non-controlling interests FEERER 38,233 231,902
Total equity Mg 3,992,958 3,620,400
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

ReEEEERE

2014

—E-F

Notes HK$’000
g TE T

17 7,502
19 376
18 36,423

44,301

17 5,496,114
19 3,556,900
39,151

9,092,165

9,136,466

13,129,424

3,145,572

LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kARBEE
Deferred income P FE A
Borrowings BE
Deferred tax liabilities B IEEE
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables B REAMEMNFIE
Borrowings BE
Taxation payable FEIBEIR
Total liabilities FES=R
Total equity and liabilities EnkBERE
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER

4,037,259

As at 31 December 2014 A ZZE—MWF+ A =+—H

2013

HK$°000
TR

14,656
696,497
37,303

748,456

5,125,347
2,002,076
31,383

7,158,806
7,907,262
11,527,662
3,515,483
4,368,856

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March EEER T —AF= A+ L B #b&E kR #E

2015. E: &
Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi
FEM P&

Director Director

EF =

The notes on pages 56 to 139 are an integral part of these financial Z56Z& 1398 Z Mz E K KB EHwR K 2 — 30
statements. 2o
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Balance Sheet

EERBR

As at 31 December 2014 A ZZE—WF+ A =+—H

Notes
B 5
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE 5
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIRE 7
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TET A 11
Cash and cash equivalents e kREEEY 13
Total assets HWEE
EQUITY R
Share capital N 14
Reserves 1 16
Total equity BRER
LIABILITIES &81&
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A5 — RS BT B A B FRIE 8
Other payables and accruals o fth JE 5 5RIB M EET ROR 17

Total liabilities

weE

Total equity and liabilities EakEERE
Net current liabilities REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAERS

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March

2015.

Li Jialin
FEM
Director

EF

T3 o

Chow Ying Chi
B
Director

EF

The notes on pages 56 to 139 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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2014
—E-NmF
HK$’000
TER

1,081
1,538,029

1,539,110

309
140,761

141,070
1,680,180

152,519
950,944

1,103,463

576,689
28

576,717
1,680,180

(435,647)

1,103,463

2013

HK$°000
TR

400
1,398,709

1,399,109

309
8,774

9,083
1,408,192

149,404
960,928

1,110,332

297,830
30

297,860
1,408,192
(288,777)
1,110,332

EFEgR_ZE-HF=ATARAHERRE

FEEOE1R M EBK AP BHRE 2 — 88
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Consolidated Income Statement

g% %
=
= I

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

2014

—E-—OF

Notes HK$°000
B 5F FHET

20 41,892,709

(40,220,035)

1,672,674

21 15,339

(631,278)

(312,838)

Turnover HERE

Cost of sales & B AR

Gross profit E

Other gains, net H g A5 58
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX
Administrative expenses TR X
Operating profit 45 & 5
Finance costs W5 E A

22 843,897

23 (104,392)

Share of associates’ profits
Share of a joint venture’s loss

51678 2 2 AL
HiA L EEE

739,505
34,939
(5,415)

Profit before taxation B 754 B i F 769,029
Taxation | 24 (143,361)
Profit for the year F R 625,668
Attributable to: LTALEWS:

Equity shareholders of the Company AANBERFEEA 607,374

Non-controlling interests 12 AR = 18,294

625,668

Earnings per share (HK cents per share) & & A (Z A 27

— Basic — HK 40.59 cents 1l

— Diluted — s 40.58 cents 1l
Dividend attributable to equity shareholders JERERFEARE

Final dividend proposed R R H AR S 26 180,000

2013

HK$°000
TR
40,239,286

(38,722,328)
1,516,958

56,169

(540,661)

(325,380)
707,086

(81,198)

625,888
33,102
(188)

658,802
(133,675)

525,127

502,725
22,402

525,127

33.77 cents 1lli
33.77 cents 1l

120,000

The notes on pages 56 to 139 are an integral part of these financial #56% 1398 » M 31 # ok /& 81 %% 3 & ~ — &
statements. 7

o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEETHERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax:

F 79 35

FREMEEBA - R

Exchange differences E X Z5

Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBARTE

Attributable to: LT AL
Equity shareholders of the Company ZN/NSIE XSS RSN
Non-controlling interests JEE RS

Total comprehensive income for the year FALHEBALE

The notes on pages 56 to 139 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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ZR

2014
—E-mF
HK$’000
THERT
625,668

(78,613)

547,055

530,581
16,474

547,055

HK$’000
TAT
525,127

(29,251)
495,876

477,311
18,565

495,876
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ment of Changes in Equity

GEREBDRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

Equity
attributable to
Capital the Company’s Non-
Share Share redemption ~ Capital General ~Translation Other  Retained equity  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve reserve reserve earnings  shareholders interests equity
gx ARRRER FER
RE BRHEE REREE E4RE -REE EXGRE EtRE REEFN BAEGER 3 BER
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TER TEL TEx TE=n TERT THERT TERT TER TERT TERT
Note () Note (i) ~ Note (i)  Note (i) Note (v) Note (vi)
B &) MEEG)  BEEG) B EER) WaE) W)
Balance as at 1 January 2013 R-F-=F—-A-A
258 124,004 772,512 4528 23,042 40,679 210,721 (182,355) 2,007,584 3,000,715 233,967 3,234,682
Profit for the year FREN - - - - - - - 502,725 502,725 2402 525127
Other comprehensive income Efp2ERA - - - - - (25414) - - (25414) (3837)  (29,251)
Total comprehensive income for FRzARAEE
the year - - - - - (25,414) - 502,725 477,311 18,565 495,876
Dividends paid to non-controling BEZaie $-3id5)
interests 28 - - - - - - - - - (5,227) (5,227)
Transfer of reserves BREE - - - - 8608 - - (8,606) - - -
Equity-settled share-based payments AR {7 3 (¢ 2 25 & E 708 - - - 1,114 - - - - 1,114 - 1,114
Dividend paid ST ) . . . - - - - (99,203) (99,203) - (99209
Acquisition of additional interestin [ 3k 1 I 1 25 W BB
a subsidiary from non-controling WEDAEMES
interests - - - - - - 5,861 - 5,861 (15,403 (9,542)
Bonus issue AR AT 24,800 (20,272) (4,528) - - - - - - - -
Share options exercised BRI ERE 600 4,078 - (1,978 - - - - 2,700 - 2,700
Balance as at 31 December 2013~ HZ-ZE—=F
+ZR=t—-Hz&H 149,404 756,318 - 22178 49,285 185,307 (176,494) 2,402,500 3,388,498 231,902 3,620,400
Representing: R&:
Share capital R 149,404
Reserves i 3,119,094
Proposed dividend REKRE 120,000
3,388,498
Balance as at 1 January 2014 i3
—A—-Bz&#H 149,404 756,318 22,178 ki 185307  (176,494) 2,402,500 3,388,498 231,902 3,620,400
Profit for the year FREMN - - 607,374 607,374 18,294 625,668
Other comprehensive income Hth2ERA (76,793) - - (76,793) 1,8200  (78,613)
Total comprehensive income for ERNZEBALE
the year (76,793) 607,374 530,581 16,474 547,055
Dividends paid to non-controling ~ [M3EE B R4 2 ik &
interests - - - - (5,428) (5,428)
Transfer of reserves HEEE I = (10,578) = - =
Dividend paid BRRE = (119,524) (119,524) (119,524)
Acquisition of additional interestin [ 3F 2 B 25 Uk B8
a subsidiary from non-controling WA R SME
interest 84,923 84923 (224243  (139,320)
Share options exercised by FERERTERRE
non-controlling interests (7,581) - (7,581) 19,528 11,947
Issue of news shares BTG ] i = = 79,114 79,114
Share options exercised BRTERRE - - 535 535
Share options forfeited or lapsed B33 Y s 2k s MR i b = 2,779 = =
Shares repurchased BEBRRS
— Par value -EfE - (109) (109)
— Premium paid —BfEE (1,712 1,712 1,712
— Transfer between reserves — BN (109) - -
Balance as at 31 December 2014 ~ R =T —W&
+ZA=t-Rz&H 152,519 832,991 19,151 59,863 108,514 (99,152) 2,880,730 3,954,725 38,233 3,992,958
Representing: K&
Share capital R 152,519
Reserves i 3,622,206
Proposed dividend HERS 180,000

3,954,725

The notes on pages 56 to 139 are an integral part of these financial $56ZE139FH 2 M iE @K A ERE 2 — 2
statements. 73 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

II'/T/\ qh)<lﬁ;ﬁ§b#&$ (II‘E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z= ==

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

—ME+-ZA=t+—HILFE

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that of
the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation in April
2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium arising from
the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies Law
(revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”),
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of their profits
after taxation to statutory surplus reserve until the surplus reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose of calculating the amount
to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after taxation is the amount determined
under PRC accounting standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to
be made before profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the
relevant regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or
to increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid and the

relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note 2.2(a)).

Annual Report 2014
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Consolidated Cash FIow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = - =

nv'ﬁ T IE, 37 /)IL E $& ’13—%

—ME+ZA=+—BLFE

2014 2013
—E-—OF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHE T FET
Cash flows from operating activities BEXEB2RERNE
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations & & (FTH) FT53H & 558 29 (20,810) 133,569
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEEFNER (42,437) (51,572)
Overseas tax paid EATEINIE (92,669) (68,248)
Net cash (used in)/generated from e EE (FTA) /8 Re
operating activities FER (155,916) 13,749
Cash flows from investing activities REZGHZHRERE
Interest received R PSS 16,618 10,110
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BERIHE (23,689) (14,911)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE &
plant and equipment &1% FriS 3k 1B 369 1,186
Investment in a joint venture RELPENKRE (51,175) (23,125)
Dividends received from an associate 1451 QRN g 8,727 9,805
Net cash used in investing activities WETHAREFE (49,150) (16,935)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBCHRESRE
Payment for repurchase of shares 8 [B] i 19 1+ 3K (1,821) —
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17150 B AR M FT 15 3R1E 535 2,700
Changes in non-controlling interests arising REBRWERQE 2
from an increase in the Group’s 3 D0 BT EE A O SRR AR
shareholding in subsidiaries BEEY (127,373) (9,542)
Issue of shares BT D 79,114 —
New bank borrowings IR ITEE 11,843,480 12,882,441
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (10,942,781) (12,444,597)
Payment to non-controlling interests LIRS (5,428) (5,227)
Interest paid ERAE (104,392) (81,198)
Dividend paid B AR R (119,524) (99,203)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEFBEREFRE 621,810 245,374
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BekReEEWLINFSE 416,744 242,188
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HBZHR&&
BE&EEY 1,168,535 936,009
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEH w2 (90,168) (9,662)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+—A=+—B8ZzB&k
REEEY 13 1,495,111 1,168,535

The notes on pages 56 to 139 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R B &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

1.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

General Information

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the distribution of information
technology (“IT”) products and the provision of enterprise systems and
IT services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$’'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March
2015.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = - =

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that other financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEME

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE @)
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs BEESHMASEB/MAUTRA
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current EEERAARRITETHBH X
accounting period of the Group and the Company: ER BB BEREEL Z2EF]
R—IEHBRE:
e Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, . BEREY B REEBEI09
Investment entities BT BHREERIFE12% &
BB S ERFE27H KE
TR 75F]
e Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and . BEASETEREIRHR - HH
financial liabilities CHEEREHBE2EE]
. Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount . BRE QI EAEIR  F 2
disclosures for non-financial assets f & ZE A ] U 0] & BB B R
[EX)
. Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and . B SFTEREIWR  IT4£
continuation of hedge accounting TAFERHPEEEZIE
& 2185

. HK(FRIC) 21, Levies BE(BEEMBREREZE

B)EANY HE

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment BB WRE LB FE105
entities EAV RS ERFE125 -

BEGTERETR KA

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents ZEBIRHEBURTEEE

which qualify to be an investment entity as defined in the Rl 2B B R E £ A E105 T

amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are required to measure ATZEREEBERBTEE 2 RNAE

their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These Rigae ARZRE - REEREAES

amendments do not have an impact on these financial BIESEAFEF=HNBAR -

statements as the Company does not qualify to be an investment HRARBITAITEREEREZ

entity. EHE WEZFEITGTELAVBE
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFHHEBE »

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REE%E )

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, the amendments
expand the disclosures required for an impaired asset or cash
generating unit whose recoverable amount is based on fair value
less costs of disposal. The amendments do not have an impact
on these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from discontinuing
hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a
hedging instrument meets certain criteria. The amendments do
not have an impact on these financial statements as the group
has not novated any of its derivatives.

HK(FRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to pay a
levy imposed by a government should be recognised. The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the guidance is consistent with the group’s
existing accounting policies.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those retuns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with note 2.8 depending on
the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see note 2.2(b)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

@

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.7), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 2.8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale
investment reserve in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = - =

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continueq)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the carrying values of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEBFEE

Buildings held for own use carried at cost
BREAINEZFHIFERET

Furniture and fixtures

RARKE

Office equipment

Computers

Motor vehicles

M

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = - =

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continueq)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
their intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z= ==
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
associate and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not available for
use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash
generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash generating units or groups of cash generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and

associate and non-financial assets (continueq)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34 “Interim financial reporting” in
respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEME

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments 28 €M IA

70

Financial assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for assets
with maturities greater than twelve months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if
the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and
the embedded derivates are not closely related, a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative
would meet the definition of a derivative, and the combined
instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value. When a
derivative financial instrument is held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualifying hedge-relationship, all changes in its
fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = - =

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula. The
cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEME

(continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables

72

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFHHEBE »

(continued)

2.12 Share capital 212 B 7R
Ordinary shares AR
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs TR TN AR - BTG K
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are BREEEENZES N ARK

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are presented as a deduction from total
equity.

2.13Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEME

(continued)

2.15Income tax (continued) 215 FTi8 % (&)

74

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets
are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFHHEBE »

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits 216 EERR

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement plans,
the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea)

@

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings).
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFHHEBE »

(continued)

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities Q17T B BRI AEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(@  Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEME

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued) 218  HE ()

78

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

(b)  Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the products and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

Project revenue

Revenue on projects is recognised in the income statement
based on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—ZF—NE+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEME

(continued)
2.22 Related parties 2N EEANTL
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ TEUTERAT FALHE
related to the Group if that person: MHRENK B EAEREEH
8
() has control or joint control over the Group; () AT ek R R A
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBBEATE
VIR

@iy  is a member of the key management personnel of iy AAREH _JZZIK EIRS/N

the Group or the Group’s parent. AMEZERABYZ
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following () EATE@MBRT ZETE

conditions applies: B R £ [ A R E

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same 0 ZEERAEELHER
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary —E @YK E QA
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). Baa -WEATRA

S M ENFIEEREH
&) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) B Y- ko)
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a NIRRT %(—2
member of a Group of which the other entity is a AHEEBERKE AN A E’]Hﬁf;
member). BRARABCE

Zr ERRULEE E’J
REAT) -

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy WMEZTRLHBE-—£=
party. THEERE-

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy XEEASF=HEED
other entity is an associate of the third entity. ABLHE . TR —EE

Al RZE = BB

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V)  ZEEAUKNEESE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity AEBEBENEEY
related to the Group. 18 B 2 M 21 T 3% A Bl B

& Am A ETE

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) FZEBIZ@EFED
person identified in (a). A TiEdl e L RES -

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) 7E (a)() 1B & BT 5 B g] )\
over the entity or is a member of the key + Yy ﬁgjq
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent Hoos e E e jz u;
of the entity). EENBARNEZE

BEHAR -
Close members of the family of a person are those family FATHEERERS 578
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced BT AL E TS 5
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. BZATHIH AT E
MR BEERK B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = - =

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (‘US$”), the Singapore
Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian Rupiah (“RP”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2014, the Group had outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with a net notional amount of
approximately HK$499,329,000 (2013: approximately
HK$368,232,000).

A 5% strengthening of the following currencies other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s entities against the
HK$ at 31 December 2014 would have increased/
(decreased) the post-tax profit in the consolidated income
statement of the Group by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

BHERARBEERAFE

(%)

31 B ERREZ )

()

RMB N
Uss$ e

S$ N3 T
THB B3

RP ENEE

A 5% weakening of the above currencies against the HK$
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details of
which have been disclosed in note 13. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank borrowings, details of which have been
disclosed in note 19. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2014, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$29,698,000 (2013:
HK$22,530,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Annual Report 2014

SINBEE R\ gz (48)

Group

KE
2014 2013
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HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
44,077 41,026
(58,809) (63,636)
13,522 6,497
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11,355 8,273
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(©

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
exposures to these credit risks are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis by established credit policies and
procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—ZF—NE+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(d)  Liquidity risk (continued)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and cash and
cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash flows. The
table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the

BHERARBEERAFE

(%)

31 M EKREZE#)

@ RBMEREBR (&)
ERERBEHRESREREE
ERAEERDESHE (R
ERIENMEE N NLIE € KR
SEEM MFEEN - TX
DERGEEREZANIEE
Mep THBEI>THEARBD

contractual maturity date. HIA R ARER AR A
BaE-
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and After
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5years
& —-FR —-FEZWME WEERLF BRAEEF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TET
Group i 3
At 31 December 2014 RZB-WmE+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings FITEE 3614043 3,593,034 3,613 10,840 6,556
Adjustments to cash flow based 1R 5 & 5 B K& RHERH
on lender’s right to demand BeEREELAE
repayment - 21,009 (3,613) (10,840) (6,556)
3,614,043 3,614,043 - - -
Finance lease liabilities BERERRE 734 282 452 - -
Trade and other payables B REMERTE 5,496,114 - - - -
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=£+-A=t+-H
Bank borrowings BAEE 2,755,792 2,021,374 713,457 10,815 10,146
Adjustments to cash flow based 1 15 & 77 & 538 #0#E 7l ¢
onlender'srighttodemand ~ BHEREELFE
repayment - 24,566 (3,605) (10,815) (10,146)
2,755,792 2,045,940 709,852 - -
Finance leass liabilities BEHEERE 449 191 258 - -
Trade and other payables 5 REMENZTE 5,125,347 5,125,347 - - -
Company YN
At 31 December 2014 RZB- I¢+—H‘+ A
Other payables and accruals K {tt B 208 i JE 5T 3% 28 28 - - -
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE-=£+-A=t+-H
Other payables and accruals ~ F{th J& 15 508 & JE 51 FUE 30 30 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREKREERAFE
(continued)) (%)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXEmE?
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard REBEBTEER 2 B # R BRA
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to SEBERNBELEE UAKRFEIR
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other HE R R A A ﬂ ﬁﬁ*g Bl & R
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to e - AR EEREREURKE
reduce the cost of capital. B o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group ﬁ”ﬂ#i:ﬂ”ﬁ$ B - AE K
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return ABRNTFTRENKRESEE M
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce REHEEAR BITHROIEE
debt. E
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity NEBEREBFHE HIELRER
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. BR o ZLERIBERFEKR AR $E
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and mAE - ERFERREE(BRRE
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance BEEEABRAMTHRE RIE
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is calculated as RBEE)REESLBECEEDT
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. B oBREERAEEEBERM TG
The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31 TRAMAEBR T —NF
December 2014: —A=+—H®NE $ 1%
2014 2013
—E-NE — =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Total borrowings (Note 19) f& & 488 (M 19) 3,557,276 2,698,573
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) BB KR ESEY(HF13) (1,495,111) (1,168,535)
Net debt (G 2,062,165 1,530,038
Total equity 48R A 3,992,958 3,620,400
Net debt/equity ratio B F R st K 0.52 0.42
BHERBERLE — M FEFR 85
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

() Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities at the
measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREKREERAFE

(continued)) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A EMEF @)
() Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)  URAFEFEZEEI
B ()
Group
rE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-—ER F-EBR FZE#®R &5t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR FERT FERT FET

At 31 December 2014 R-EB-NE+=-A=+—H
Liabilities afE
Forward foreign exchange RHEIMNES K

contracts — 1,389 — 1,389
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE-=%+=-A=+-—H
Liabilities =R
Forward foreign exchange EHNES K

contracts — 40,724 — 40,724
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there REE-_ZE-—NFER-_ZT—=ZF+=A4
were no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy. =+ BLEFER AFEERAZMEL

EEITEMER -

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts in Level 2 is FERERBAINESHNNRTFENERE
determined by discounting the contractual forward price and HRPAEBEBRERTBREZEMREEBRE
deducting the current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived FEeFMFEAMBERIZEEZANB B
from the relevant government yield curve as at the balance sheet RFREEHR SMEHANBEEEES
date plus an adequate constant credit spread. =5/ E-

BAZRERQIA —T-HFFRH 87
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to
the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs
of inventories are recorded to the extent where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in which
such estimate are changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables to the
extent where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate are changed.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued)

(©)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwil, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective and
judgements are based on the Group’s experience and knowledge
of operations. These estimates can be significantly impacted by
many factors including changes in business and economic
conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

Group REE
Buildings held
Leasehold for own use Furniture Office Motor  Assets under
improvements  carried at cost and fixtures  equipment  Computers vehicles  construction Total
HE RBREKRGEH KA
WELE REERET REE BOAERE B AE HREE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TET TET TET TERT
As at 1 January 2013 R-ZE-=%—-A—H
Cost RAE 19,895 71,071 14,528 12,049 38,718 8,986 114 165,361
Accumulated depreciation e (9,760) (5,835) (2,740) (7,012 (12,046) (5,186) - (42,579)
Net book amount BEFE 10,135 65,236 11,788 5,037 26,672 3,800 114 122,782
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE-T—=%F
+ZA=+—-RLFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 10,135 65,236 11,788 5,037 26,672 3,800 114 122,782
Additions RE 467 - 686 476 9,126 2,222 1,934 14,911
Transfer i 1,730 - 50 - 43 - (1,823 -
Disposals HE - (471) (149) (163) (168) (341) - (1,292)
Depreciation e (8,579) (1,450) (2,615) (1,657) (8,909) (1,595) - (19,805)
Exchange difference EXERE 54 75 (411) (119) (496) 40 8 (849)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,807 63,390 9,349 3,574 26,268 4,126 233 115747
Asat 31 December 2013and ~ HN-ZT—=4
1 January 2014 +-A=+—-8k
“E2-NE-A—-H
Cost RAE 22,310 70,431 14,061 11,584 42,019 8,707 233 169,345
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (13,503) (7,041) 4,712) (8,010) (15,751) (4,581) - (53,598)
Net book amount REYE 8,807 63,390 9,349 3,574 26,268 4,126 233 115,747
Year ended 31 December 2014  HZE-T—M4F
TZA=+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FNREEE 8,807 63,390 9,349 3,574 26,268 4,126 233 115747
Additions RE 7,540 - 2,934 1,053 6,481 1,311 4,370 23,689
Transfer B 239 - 2,595 - 12 - (2,846) -
Disposals e (160) - (132) (84) (251) - - (627)
De-registration of a subsidiary ~ #i5 — M BAR 2 - - - (57) - - - (57)
i
Depreciation e (8932 (1,442) (2,865) (1,469) (8,599) (1,208) - (19,513)
Exchange difference EXZE (382) (46) (360) (68) (624) (81) (66) (1,627)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 12,112 61,902 11,521 2,949 23,287 4,150 1,691 117,612
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZT—MF
+=ZA=+-8
Cost RAE 27,839 70,226 18,206 10,846 40,800 8,886 1691 178,494
Accumulated depreciation 2EthE (15,727) (8,324) (6,685) (7,897) (17,513) (4,736) - (60,882)
Net book amount REFE 12,112 61,902 11,521 2,949 23,287 4,150 1,691 117,612
The net book value of property, plant and equipment under finance MEHEEBET ZVE BMEERZEBER =
leases as at 31 December 2014 was HK$1,009,000 (2013: E—NE+_-_HA=+—HBHOEREEAS

HIK$964,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

5. PrOperty, Plant and EQUipment (continued) d. % % ’ Jﬂﬁ E & EQ%(%";)
Company P NN
Motor vehicles
RE
HK$’000
FHET
As at 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—HF—H
Cost A 1,998
Accumulated depreciation REHITE (1,4695)
Net book amount BREFE 533
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—BLEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFEE 533
Depreciation e (133)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 400
As at 31 December 2013 and at 1 January 2014 RZEFE—=F+-_A=+—HE
—E—mHFE—H—H
Cost AR E 1,998
Accumulated depreciation REIE (1,598)
Net book amount BREFE 400
Year ended 31 December 2014 BEZZ—NMO&F+=-A=T—HLFE
Opening net book amount FEREFE 400
Addition NE 730
Depreciation e (49)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,081
As at 31 December 2014 RZE—WmF+=-A=+—H
Cost KARE 2,120
Accumulated depreciation Bt e (1,039)
Net book amount BREFE 1,081
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

6. Goodwill 6. BB

92

Group

2014 2013

—E—OF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FAT
Goodwill GRS 324,001 333,052
As at 1 January w—A—H 333,052 339,756
Exchange difference [ = %8 (9,051) (6,704)
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 324,001 333,052

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units (“CGUS”)
to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the impairment
review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of assumptions
reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Key assumptions used for
value-in-use calculation for each group of CGUs include:

(@  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the cash
flow projections range from 5.0% to 10% (2013: 5.7% to 10%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rates as at 31 December 2014 which range
from 7.6% to 12.9% (2013: 7.6% to 12.1%) were applied in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The discount
rates used reflect the risk-free rates and the premiums for
specific risks relating to the business units to which the CGUs
relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # = - =

Investments in Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

—ME+ZA=+—BLFE

7. REBRARAZRE

Company
AAT
2014 2013
—E-NmE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Investments at cost A KA
— Shares listed in Singapore (Note) — F g b AR (B EE) 1,363,034 1,228,714
— Unlisted investments, at cost —ELETEE  EBKAE 174,995 174,995
1,538,029 1,398,709

Note: On 14 November 2014, the Company announced that it intended to
make an offer for all shares of ECS Holdings Limited (“ECS”) which it did
not held. The acquisition of shares by the Company was completed on 6
February 2015 and ECS was delisted in Singapore with effect on 23
February 2015. The acquisition of the shares of ECS subsequent to the
year end does not have significant financial impact to the Group and it is
dealt in equity.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as
follows:

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

Mz : R —F-—MF+—-A+EA ARAE
st EARRR AR QB ([EARR])
RARBAERBFEZMBERNDELE
e BOPRBRARRAR -_FT-—RHF=-
ARBZER MEAMKEE-F 12
F_AZT=ZHABEBERF NN L
WAL o R F RIZ B EARBH R 2 IR fn
TEAAEEERERUBLE M
B E -

R-ZE-—NMF+-_A=+T—BZTEN
BRARZHFRBWT :

Percentage of

Particulars of issued share interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
SRS BIIRES FEERE DL
8 B 3 it Bh TEXBRKE I HEMEARFE BEE 5
(Btzt)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares of 100% —
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BHEEBERAF BEERHDS REER AR EFREEIET 100% —
EEBERHS 2 ERK
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT products  RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. in the PRC
RINEBHEERES I KRB HER A R 100,000,000 7T 100% -
BRRQA] R E m
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continueo) 7. REBARZRE =
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as RZE—ME+_A=1+—HZ2FEW
follows: (continued) BRARZFHBWOT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
SRS BERITRES FEERE DL
=E B3 i Bh FTEXBRKE I HEMEARFE HE i
(Btzt)
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT products 2 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited in Hong Kong
EHER(EH) e REEDIHE 2IE B - 100%
BRAQA] R E m

62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
62,000,000 % & &% 22

IR FE R 19
Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT products  USD20,000,000 — 100%
Technology in the PRC
Development
Co., Ltd
BEEELEAR H NG IET R 20,000,000 T - 100%
EERAR LA BHE E @
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding 365,910,174 ordinary shares 98.42% -
and distribution of $$0.3088 each
of IT products,
provision of [T
services and
enterprise systems
in Singapore
EARBREBRRAA #1003 REFME R ERE 365,910,174 % 98.42% -

ZRC D EMBHR B AR EE0.3088 %7 N4 7T
B RHEEMRER Z g B
R R BERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMBRATRZRE

R-E-—NMF+-_A=+T—BZETEN

BARZHBET  (4)

Percentage of

Particulars of issued share

interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
M BRITRAE S FEEZE L
=8 X 3L ih B FTEEBRKE W M E RS Hiz 3
(Bt 77)
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding 196,000 preferred shares, —  98.32%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd in Thailand non-accumulative
dividend, Baht 1.25 per
share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings = REBEREREER 196,000 % & I I 1B 1.25 3% &k —  98.32%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd ZEER - BRE IR
K.204,000 % & I E B 1.25
Tk EBR
The Value Systems Thailand Provider of information 7,783,000 shares of —  98.42%
Co., Ltd technology products 10 Baht each
and services for
[T infrastructure
in Thailand
The Value Systems = FREEARREMR 7,783,000 % —  98.42%
Co., Ltd B A R SREE10R %
R 75 FE 7 2 Bt
ECS Computers Singapore Provider of information 13,600,000 ordinary shares —  98.42%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd technology products of S$1 each
and services for IT
infrastructure in
Singapore
ECS Computers sk N EMB R ES R 13,600,0000% —  98.42%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd BB E i R BREE1 I
PR 75 1t P& 7 2 &Rk
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Singapore Retail of information 150,000 ordinary shares —  98.42%
Pte Ltd technology products,
IT equipment and
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) %7 il 3% RFET M EEMBE 150,000 8% & 8 ik —  98.42%
Pte Ltd Em - BABHREHE
REcHZE

BAZKRERLF

T -FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

7. RMBRARZRE @

R=B-—MEF=A=T—HZF2H
BRAG BN (&)

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as
follows: (continued)

Percentage of
interest held

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
SRS BRITRAE S FEERE DL
=E B3 i Bh FTEXBRKE I HEMEARFE HE i
(Bt 77)
Isan System Pte Ltd. Singapore Provision and distribution 2 ordinary shares —  98.42%
of information technology ~ of S$1 each
products and general
trading of IT equipment
in Singapore
Isan System Pte Ltd. N AT AN AR 41 2 45 2R R E B FT N T —  98.42%
BB RERRKE 2 ERR
—REMBHERE
25
ECS Enterprise Solutions Singapore Distribution of Information 5,000,000 ordinary shares —  98.42%
Pte Ltd technology products of S$1 each
and services for
[T infrastructure
in Singapore
ECS Enterprise Solutions %7 i # RETINE » 8 E B 5,000,000 % —  98.42%
Pte Ltd B R EEARR FREE NS T
5% e AR 75 2 ERR
ECS Technology (China) Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares —  98.42%
Limited provider of information
technology products
and services for
[T infrastructure
in Hong Kong
ECS Technology (China) & & wEER  BBEM 11,500,000 % ¥ if % —  98.42%
Limited BHLE @ R E AR
AR RERBHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continueq) 7. RHBARZRE®
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as RZE-—MNEF+-_A=+—HZ2EEMN
follows: (continued) BARZFEWT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
M BRITRAE S FEERE DL
=E B3 i Bh FTEEBRKE W HEMEARFE HE i
(Bt 77)
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$10,000,000 —  98.42%
(Guangzhou) technology products
Company Limited and services for
[T infrastructure
in the PRC
ECS Technology s FEEMBHRERR 10,000,000% 7T —  08.42%
(Guangzhou) BB ERE
Company Limited Pk 745 L FE 79
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$1,282,000 —  98.42%
Company Limited technology products

and services for
IT infrastructure

in the PRC
ECS Technology e FEEMBHREMR R 1,282,000% 7T —  08.42%
Company Limited BB ERE
AR 75 £ FE 7
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of information US$25,000,000 —  98.42%
Management Co., Ltd technology products

and services for
IT infrastructure

in the PRC
ECS (Shanghai) H FEEMBHRE®RR 25,000,0003 7T —  98.42%
Management Co., Ltd BRI EREE
PR 75 1 FE 7
ECS China Technology PRC Provider of information US$15,000,000 —  98.42%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd technology products

and services for
IT infrastructure

in the PRC
ECS China Technology & FEEMBHREMR R 15,000,000 % 7T —  98.42%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd B R E TR
AR 75 B 7S
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries continueq) 7. RMBRARZRE»
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as RZE—WOF+A=+—HZEZEMW
follows: (continued) BRARZFHBWOT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
RS BRITRE FEERBE DL
=x: R S 3 B FTEXEBRKE W M EARFE BHE i
(Bt 77)
ECS Beijing Chuang Yue PRC Provider of information US$1,000,000 —  98.42%
Technology Co., Ltd technology products

and services for
IT infrastructure

in the PRC
ECS Beijing Chuang Yue B R E 1,000,000% 7T —  98.42%
Technology Co., Ltd BB E MR
BR 75 $H e 7
EIT Info-tech Limited Hong Kong Provider of information 1 ordinary share —  98.42%

technology products
and services for
IT infrastructure

in Hong Kong
EIT Info-tech Limited BB BEEEMBMRER R 1A% R —  98.42%
BB AT R
AR5 L™
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provider of information 10 ordinary shares —  98.42%
Co., Limited technology products

and services for
IT infrastructure

in Hong Kong

ECS Technology (HK) &7 BEEMMRERR 100% & i —  98.42%

Co., Limited BB A R

AR5 L™

ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of information 2,524,785 ordinary shares, —  98.42%
technology products issued and paid up capital:
in Singapore US$1,615,392

ECS Indo Pte. Ltd sk N E AR R E MR 2,524,785 R B BT R —  98.42%
DB BRBRAE B :

1,615,392 7T
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 7. RMBRARZRE @
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as RZZE—WOF+ZA=+—HZEZEW
follows: (continued) BARZFEWT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML BRITRA s L
8 B3 i Bh FTEEBRKE I TMEARFE HiE 3
(Bt 77)
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of information 100,000 ordinary shares of —  98.42%
technology products US$1 each
in Indonesia
PT ECS Indo Jaya EIfE R BRI E m 100,000 & IR E(E 1= 7T -  98.42%
7 iHE 2 ERR
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each —  98.42%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore
ECS Infocom (Phils) sk REFMFE R EREZER 2REBREE1FIMNE T —  98.42%
Pte. Ltd 2 ERR
ECS Chongging PRC Electronic settlement US$10,000,000 —  98.42%
Marketing & payment business centre
Co., Ltd and provider of

information technology
products and services
of IT infrastructure

in PRC
ECS Chongaing H TRIEFAEEEB DL 10,000,000% T —  98.42%
Marketing & payment REMBHRE MR
Co., Ltd BB B R
PR 75 FE 7
Note: WiatE -
All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in the BRAPBEKIOMB AR AIINEBEEDE
PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises. SN BB AR ABRAR
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T = =,
8. Amount due to a Subsidiary 8. EKEARRKE
The amount due to a subsidiary of HK$576,689,000 (2013: & 1] Tt /B A &) 3R IH 576,689,000/ T (=
HK$297,830,000) is unsecured, interest-free, denominated in HK$ and T — = : 297,830,000/8 JT.) & 3K 1 -
is repayable on demand. BB UBTERERERKERE -
9. Interest in Associates 9. REE RTINS
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-MmEF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Unlisted F¥ETH
Share of net assets DIFEEE 76,387 69,376
Loan to an associate MEEE DR ER 3,463 3,481
79,850 72,857
Listed outside Hong Kong EBUNMELT
Share of net assets DIEFEE 242,930 242,610
322,780 315,467
Market value of listed shares EmiRfpmE 196,070 205,088
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BRYBHERAMNERNUNETIHE LA
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. mEAR - 2R RTEER—FRE -
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9. Interest in Associates continueq 9. REBEQNTANER
Details of the associates as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: R-E—NE+_A=+—HHBEZ2Q

AFEMT -

Country of Particulars of issued Equity interest held by
Name incorporation Principal activities shares held the Group
£ HEMEYER TEXHK FEERTROFES rEBFEZRE
2014 2013
TE-IF e s
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc  Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary 49.99% 49.99%
shares of Peso
100 each
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc ~ JE2 & DI E AR E @ 3,097,055 %
AR E{E 100 =
2 E ik
ECS ICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 180,000,000 ordinary 41%
technology and shares of RM0.5 each
services for
[T infrastructure
in Malaysia
ECSICT Berhad B TR BHEREEEMBIE 180,000,000 %
ERREERRM R BREEISSH
AR 7 2 EBAR
None of the associates were considered individually material to the BEEE R RERNMEHRRERER
Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the % BER-ZEREVBHRERPAEEE
consolidated financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate NFIZHBEEHER EXHEE -XEES
financial information (the Group’s share) of these associates is as HZEHME RN ZARTEMBERDN
follows: N
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Profit from continuing operations B 1S s R 34,939 33,102
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wl A (18,881) (17,990)
Total comprehensive income 2EBRABEE 16,058 15,112
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10. Interests in Joint Venture

10.

Unlisted
Share of net assets

¥ LW
DIEFEE

png /\ S
REELENER
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
67,385 23,041

Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

R-Z—ME+-_A=+—BHE %0
EFEBWOT:

Particulars of

Country of registered and Equity interest held by
Name incorporation  Principal activities paid-in capital the Group
=x HEMEYER TEXH AMREHERFE rEEFRFEzRE
2014 2013
=k T —F
Bozhou Botong PRC Research and development, RMB115,000,000 51.26% 33%
Information production and sale of
Technology smartphones and computer
Co., Ltd peripheral product
EMHEREES & e AENHESR A R #115,000,0007T 51.26% 33%
BB RA A FHETHEEEmM

Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered
material to the Group. Financial information (Group’s share) of this joint
venture is as follows:

EMTERCEEMRBERATNAAEHE
SEEBNE-—RE2ELE I THK
BREAEEBEXN -AEEBDIEZAE

Loss from continuing operations BEKEEE
Other comprehensive income Hib2EEA
Total comprehensive income TEAEEE

EhEZHMBERNAT :
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-—MEF —E—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER Tt
(5,415) (188)
(1,416) 104
(6,831) (84)

On 29 July 2014, the Group and the other joint venturers entered into
an amended joint venture agreement, pursuant to which the total
investment in the joint venture was increased from RMB55,000,000 to
RMB115,000,000. The Group made a capital injection of
RMB40,800,000 (equivalent to HK$51,175,000) to the joint venture
during the year. The capital injection was certified with a capital
verification report dated 12 August 2014.
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11. Trade and Other Receivables N EZRHEMERRKE
Group Company
rEE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z—mEF —ET—=F —E—{F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET

Trade receivables, net B S EIRGIEF 8 6,699,257 5,816,260
Other receivables and H th JE U FRIA K

prepayments I8~ FR B 945,196 1,034,410 309
Deferred expenses (Note 17(d) & iE 57 % (#1535 17(d)) 18,937 22,122

7,663,390 6,872,792
Less: Non-current deferred B FE B HRIE IE R 2

expenses (Note 17(d)) (K& 17(d) (5,876) (11,488) -
7,657,514 6,861,304
The Group grants credit period to third party customers ranging from 7 AEBBKTFTEZFNBEFPZEEHNT7
to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers Z150H METERFZEEHTFE
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the Group. E RIBSEEAEEIZRHIERGK
The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is as LHEME - BHEKRFBFEREEH
follows: HEIDoMERERITOT
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Tz FHET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 3,700,414 3,357,707
31 - 60 days 312 60H 1,744,948 1,413,627
61 — 90 days 61290H 513,706 422,456
Over 90 days HiBo0H 740,189 622,470

6,699,257 5,816,260
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

11. Trade and Other Receivables continueo) N ESZRHEMEBEBVRNKE
As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of HK$2,156,346,000 (2013: RZE—NF+ZA=+—H B2
HK$959,073,000), which were fully performing, were past due but not B 1788 5 & U 5K 1H 2,156,346,000 % 7T
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for — & — =4 : 959,073,000/ 7t) = #
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these BARBE ZERBEUEZEBUYRFA
trade receivables by due date is as follows: B REWELHENLE - ZEE S

JEWFIBIZRE BB S D MRS T W
T
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
F&Ex FiE T
0 - 30 days 0% 30H 1,515,185 546,250
31 - 60 days 31260H 304,321 179,923
61 — 90 days 61290H 169,677 90,811
Over 90 days HiEo0H 167,163 142,089
2,156,346 959,073
As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of HK$220,913,000 (2013: R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—"H B5HE
HK$241,369,000) were impaired and full provision has been made. The W 3 15220,918,0008 L (=& — = F ¢
ageing analysis of these receivables by invoice date is as follows: 241,369,000/ L) ERE ' W EEH &
HEE ZFERFBEREZAHE S
HERBE DT ¢
Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-—OF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx T T
0 -90 days 0Z290H 6,462 2,144
Over 90 days HiEo0H 214,451 239,225

220,913 241,369
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

11. Trade and Other Receivables ontinue)

Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as follows:

N EZREMEKRFE
B EUEERENEBMT -

Group

*
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FBT

241,369 196,707
29,344 58,652

(44,113) (15,893)
(5,687) 1,903

At 1 January n—H—H

Provision Ecgi

Receivables written off during the year FAME R TAIYE
as uncollectible ol e

Exchange difference ME W =&

At 31 December Rn+=ZA=+—8

220,913 241,369

All of the above provision relates to trade receivables that were
individually determined to be impaired.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical
information about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties
have not had significant defaults in the past.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated
in the following currencies:

P b B¢ R 15 B M Bl 7 5E 7 5 L BROR
BENEZERKKAER -

BERRRBENE 5 & H A E KRR
EEERNZ2EXHEFHEETEDE
ERFARE -REXHEFREETALESK
B o

BHREMBUWHRAREENL NI EE
itHA

Group Company
rE b N

2014
—E-OF

HK$°000

FTH T

HK$ BT 46,467
RMB AR 5,080,747

Us$ ET 1,063,079
S$ N T 396,143
THB =ik 709,615

RP Elfe & 361,463

7,657,514 6,861,304

2013 2014 2013
ZECF bl T =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TER TET
3,827
4,160,237
1,495,047
328,526
694,936
178,731

BAZRERQIA —T-HFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

12. Inventories 12. 78
Group
&
2014 2013
—EF-ImF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FiET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale BEHEBEFELFE 2,543,210 2,139,726
Inventories-in-transit EEREFE 541,902 504,724
3,085,112 2,644,450
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is BWRERIZ2FESBEZ D MEHAM
shown in note 22. 22 ¢
13. Cash and Cash Equivalents 13.BHEREAESEEY
Group Company
r&E AAFE

2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-—MF T =% —E-ImEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&TT FHET FiET
Cash at bank and in hand BARBEERS 1,471,361 1,064,546 140,761
Short-term bank deposits WHRTTER
(Note a) (Ktita)

Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEED

23,750 103,989 = -

1,495,111 1,168,535 140,761
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13. Cash and Cash Equivalents coninueq 13 HEREEEEDN »
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated RekReSEEWEREENATIEE
in the following currencies: & :
Group Company
& b NS

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F —E—{F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
TERT FAT FET FAT

HK$ BT 93,098 16,800 80,554

RMB (Note b) AR (K7 5Eb) 820,150 673,924 —
USs$ ESI 340,666 336,739 72
S$ s T 195,860 90,946 5,721
THB /N 23,383 31,539 -

RP ElfefE 21,954 18,587

1,495,111 1,168,535 140,761

Notes: Btat -

(@)  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.37% (2013:1.00%) @ RKRHBETERZEBRFNEXABIT%
per annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 8.82 days (2013: (ZE— =% :1.00%) - ZEHFR2F
9.44 days). HE A R882H(ZFT — =4 :944

) -

(o)  The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are ) ATEBUAARBHEZRITEHRET
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB R TFEMARPEZRIT - HIBZEUA
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds REFHEZERARINEREESER
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange FEEBTHREBAABEGINEE
control promulgated by the government of the PRC. il A7 Bl K 28 1
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14. Share Capital

14. BRZ

Authorised:
2,000,000,000 (2013: 2,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

EE
2,000,000,000( = FE— =4 :
2,000,000,000) f% & A%

HmEIB L LBk

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

2014

—E—-mEF
Number of
issued ordinary
shares of HK$0.1
each
SRMEE0.1ET
ZEBITERER
A

At 1 January n—H—H 1,494,043,998
Bonus issue (Note a) AT RR 27T (B ata) =
Issue of new shares (Note b) BITH D (B aEb) 32,000,000
Share option exercised (Note c) 2 47 1% & J 4 (1 32 c) 240,000
Repurchase of own shares 5 B 72N & iR 19

(Note d) (K1 aFd) (1,096,000)
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—8H 1,525,187,998
Notes:
(a) Bonus issue of shares

By an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting on 23
May 2013, the issued share capital was increased by way of a bonus
issue by applying HK$4,528,000 and HK$20,272,000 charged to the
capital redemption reserve and share premium account respectively as
payment in full for 248,007,333 shares at par of HK$0.1 each, on the
basis of two new shares for every ten shares held on 7 June 2013. These
shares rank pasi passu with the existing ordinary shares in all respects.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
200,000 200,000
BEETRBR 2L @K -
2013
—E—=F
Number of
issued ordinary
shares of
Par value HK$0.1 each  Par value
FREE01E T
ZEBITTRR
H{E £ = [}l
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&xT T
149,404 1,240,036,665 124,004
- 248,007,333 24,800
3,200 — —
24 6,000,000 600
(109) — —
152,519 1,494,043,998 149,404
Hiat -
(a) AR EEAT

BER-TE—Z=ZFRA=-+=ZBZK
REFRELBBAZEERAER BF%
TTRANARET ARG FERR
BERER-_ZE—=ZALtAEHET
AR 2 E%E - A D
BEARERFERBROGEEERMGR 2
4,528,000 7T } 20,272,000/ 7t * & &
% T B 3 17 248,007,333 1% & % @ 1&0.1
B2 - ZERHOIEMB HEER
BEBRABHERMA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

14. Share Capital continueq)

14, B2 %)

(o) lssue of shares b)  EITRRG
On 27 November 2014, the Company issued 32,000,000 new shares at a RZZE—WF+—A=Z++tH  ARQA
consideration of HK$80,000,000. The incremental costs for the issue of LA X {8 80,000,000 7T # 17 32,000,000
shares amounted to HK$886,000. Net proceeds from the issue of shares BRI HITRD ZBEIIKAE B
amounted to HK$79,114,000 of which HK$3,200,000 was credited to 886,000/ JT ° 2 17 B {n 2 FT 15 38 F
share capital and the balance of HK$75,914,000 were credited to the B8 A79,114,0007% 7T+ H 7 3,200,0007%5
share premium account. JLEF ABR AR - T #% 8875,914,0007% 7T A1
FTARBDHEEE -
(¢)  Shares issued under share option scheme ) IREBERESEETRNG
On 28 October 2014, options were exercised to subscribe for 240,000 R-E—NF+A-_+N\B BEREE
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$535,000 of 17 {8 LA % X {8 535,000/ 7T R B A R A)
which HK$24,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of 240,000 f% & 3@ f% - H # 24,000/ 7T 50
HK$759,000 were credited to the share premium account. HK$248,000 AR 7 - i &4 88 759,0005% 7T Al 5T AR
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium 7 4 B BR ° 248,0007% JT E 1B #52.16(d)
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in 2.16(d). BN BRI ERNEBEERER
miaER-
On 14 November 2013, options were exercised to subscribe for 6,000,000 R-ZE-—=F+—-—A+H0B BEREE
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$2,700,000 of 17 18 LA 4= X f82,700,000/% 7T R 1 A A
which HK$600,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of 716,000,000 f% & i@ A% + H #600,000%8
HK$2,100,000 were credited to the share premium account. JC & AR% A - i # %82,100,0007%8 T 5+
HK$1,978,000 has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share A B 19 34 18 BR © 1,978,000 7T & 1R 1%
premium account in accordance with policy set out in 2.16(d). 2ABA)FTE MR ERNFEEERER
19 [BAR
(d)  Repurchase of own shares @ BEBEARHRKRG
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company repurchased its REBEZFT—NF+=-A=+—H1
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FE ARARBEIMEERERS KRG
mn
Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price purchase price
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share paid
- 4E g1t B ft g1t
BE A5 ZERHAE EREBESERE SREEERE HEEER
HK$ HK$ HK$
May 2014 —E—NFARA 1,036,000 1.65 1.64 1,708,480
June 2014 —E—UEKXA 60,000 1.88 1.64 112,320
1,096,000 1,820,800
BHAERERAR T UFFH 109
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14. Share Capital continueq)

(e) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the balance sheet

14. BRZX )

C

B R B H R OR 7T {62 2 B8 JHE F B

date
Exercise price 2014 2013
Exercise period THEM TEE —E-lmEF —E-=F
17 February 2013 to —E-=F_A++tHZE HK$2.227
16 February 2021 —E-—F - /F+KH 2227770 12,000,000 12,240,000
23 March 2013 to —E-ZFf=ZA-+Z=H=E HK$2.028
22 March 2021 —E=-—¥=A=+=H 2.028/% 7T 4,920,000 5,400,000
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the 52 T\ E% REHE THEARBBALA
Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 15 to the LB R - ZFRERE 2 —

financial statements.

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
17 April 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees (including both
full time and part time employees, and Executive Directors), Non-
executive Directors, suppliers, customers and other corporations
or individuals that provide support to the Group (as defined in the
share option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the share option scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii)
the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer.
The options vest ranging from O to 2 years from the date of grant
as determined by the Directors and are then exercisable within a
period of ten years including the vesting period, if any. Each share
option gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continvesy  15. AR X 2 = &

MIE (@)
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ ADABRETE 2
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, () LTAELZETEIEY,-
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bt BE_ZTZ—NF+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2014: B=+—BItEE FEHE

BEGAENZNBRNEE :

Outstanding Exercisable

Outstanding Lapsed  Exercised asat asat Exercise Contractual Remaining

asat during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual

Date of grant 1 January 2014 the year the year 2014 (HKS) conditions options life

R=B-NF

-A-H RER RER k& BRE ol

Rt AH e K176 %% it L (#7) BRHES EHES CLES
Directors 3

23March 2011 —E——# 5,400,000 (480,000) 4,920,000 4,920,000 2 Years from 10 Years 6.23 Years

ZA-+=H date of grant

BELAS 105 6.235
Bit2E

Employees &g

17 February 2011 —5——% 12,240,000 (240,000) 12,000,000 12,000,000 2 Years from 10 Years 6.14 Years
ZAt+tR date of grant

AREAH 105 6.14%F
it

17,640,000 (480,000) (240,000) 16,920,000 16,920,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise FRABTEERERITER
for share options exercised during the year was HK$2.17 B 2 R E R217H
(2013: HK$1.57). T(ZZE—=F :1.5787T) °
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continvesy  15. AR 0 X 2 == &

=+,
I )
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continueq) @ AnTFERETS @
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follow, (i) UTRERE IR RAIEHT
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of EH BE-_T—=—F+—
shares for the year ended 31 December 2013: B=+—BItEE FFHE

Bt 35 AE M XA B tn 4

Outstanding Exercisable
QOutstanding Lapsed  Adjusted Exercised asat asat  Exercise Contractual ~ Remaining
asat 1 January during bonus during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
Date of grant 2013 theyear shares  the year 2013 2013 (HK$)  conditions options life
i =F RIB-Z%
RER  KAK HERW tZA=+—HB +tZA=+t—-0 1I&E AR Ftk
R A KM HE 1% W RAT{E ATaE (Br) BEEE AOFH ANEH
Directors =
20 February 2009 —ZZ N & 5,000,000 — 1,000,000 (6,000,000) - - 0.45 Nil 10 Years -
“RA=+H
& 105 -
28March2011  —Z——% 4,700,000  (200,0000 900,000 - 5,400,000 5,400,000 2.028 2Yearsfrom  10Years 7.23 Years
ZR=+=H date of grant
BREAH
RE2F 105 7.23%
Employees &8
17 February 2011 —ZF——4% 10,200,000 — 2,040,000 - 12,240,000 12,240,000 2.227 2Yearsfrom  10Years 7.14 Years
ZAttH date of grant

ARILBEH
e ke 104 7145

19,900,000  (200,000) 3,940,000 (6,000,000) 17,640,000 17,640,000
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continueq)

(b)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, has a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (“Scheme II”), which was adopted
on 13 December 2000 whereby the Directors of ECS are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite ECS’s employees and
Directors, including Non-executive Directors of ECS and its
subsidiaries (‘ECS Group”) to take up options to subscribe for
shares in ECS. The subscription price is determined by the ECS’s
Board of Directors and is set either at () a price equal to the
average of the last dealt price of ECS’s share for the three
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the grant of the
option (i) a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of
the market price in respect of that option. Each share option
gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
ECS. The options vest after one year from the date of grant and
are then exercisable at any time after the first anniversary of the
grant date and in the case of option with exercise price set at a
discount, at any time after the second anniversary of date of
grant. Options granted to employees and Executive Directors are
exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of date of grant and those
granted to Non-executive Directors are exercisable up to the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant. The scheme ceased to be in
force upon the successful privatisation of ECS by the Company
in February 2015.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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15. l«MﬂﬁﬁS‘ZﬁZi‘E 1 A

FRIE (@)

(b)

B QB —EARR R AR
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AR —_ZEETF+_A+=ZBK
B RER S - ERN B IR E
st S - TJ‘élit CERBR
EEERENBAFSEANRRZ
EE&E%(@?E%ZM#&&%W
BAR([EARREE]) 2 FHTT
ER)EMBRE URBELIH
Rk  RBEOENMKRZE
ERET AIERNEENERER
HEERERS=EZEERS A
ERRBEBENHOF Y REKRE
(i) A B T BRI 2 T
BTEN20% - FHBRESET
FAEARB -BREANKRETBEK
ZHER - BBREN R L A B ER —
FRERE MERUREHA#H—
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continvesy  15. AR 0 X 2 == &

I )
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS b) MiEBAIA—ERBEER
HoIdingS Limited (“ECS”) (continued) AR (TEARARFDHNER
Bt
0} The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, 0] LNTAEEE BT RIEHT-
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bl BE-_T—mE+—
shares for the year ended 31 December 2014: B=+—BIEE FrEHE

BRAEGABEN IR EE

Forfeited or
Outstanding  Exercised lapsed  Outstandingat  Exercisableat  Exercise Contractual Remaining
at 1 January during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
Date of grant 2014 the year the year 2014 2014 (S9) conditions options life
RZE-mE R=2-ImE R-B-0F
-A-H RER RER +=B=t-H t+=B=t-H e BRE HER
R AH ief R AT 6 e RUAXHK I R T TFIHE GFmgx) ERRH BHER AHNEH
Directors Bz
150ctober 2010 —2—Z & 300,000 (300,000) W 1Yearfrom  5-10 Years 0.8t05.8
+A+ERB date of grant Years

AREAH 52106 08%58F
BI1E

Employees EERAM

and other

15 October 2010 —T—T4& 10,250,000 (3,530,000  (6,720,000) | 1Yearfom 5-10Years 081058
+A+ERB date of grant Years

BREAER 5Z10F 08Z58%F

F1F
10,550,000 (3,530,000  (7,020,000)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 6,990,000 share HEz—FT—nmE+=A=+—H
options were lapsed upon acceptance by the option holders of 1F F E © 6,990,00017 B % #E 7 88
the offer for the privatisation of ECS. The Group paid REFEABEMNENRKEILEL
SGDY08,700 (equivalent to HK$5,365,000) to the option holders B R 18 KW o AR (A B AR+
in respect of the lapse of share options. B A {$908,700 %7 hn4 7T (FHE R

5,365,000/ 7T) ©
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments contiesy  15. L,L BT

I ()
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS b KMBAT—EAREER
H H H “ ” B N
H0|d|ngS Limited ( ECS ) (continued) AR (TEABRFEDHNEBER
st E )
(i)~ The terms and conditions of the grants for the year ended if NANTFTA#ZE-—Z—=¢+=
31 December 2013 are as follows: BE=+—HIEERE 7K
AT
Outstanding ~ Reallocated Lapsed Exercisable at
at 1 January during during  Outstanding at 31 31 December Exercise Vesting  Contractual Remaining
Date of grant 2013 the year theyear  December 2013 2013 price (S$) conditions term of options  contractual life
RZE-=% RZB-=f R-T-=%
—A-H RER RERN +ZA=+-B +ZA=+-H TfE Bk et
Bt R HATE  EWOR KA HMARTE TR Gmgr) FEGMT RHES £
Directors Bz
150ctober 2010 —2—Z 4% 1,900,000 (700,000) (900,000) 300,000 300,000 0.55 1Yearfrom  5-10 Years 181068
+A+ERB date of grant Years
BRHAY 52106 18%68%
BE1E
Employees EERAM
and other
150ctober 2010 —2—Z 4% 10,150,000 700,000 (600,000) 10,250,000 10,250,000 0.55 1Yearfrom  5-10 Years 1.8106.8
+A+ERB date of grant Years
BRHAY 52106  18%68%
BE1E
12,050,000 - (1,500,000) 10,650,000 10,650,000
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16. Reserves 16. ¥
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AREBBERRSEXNDNFVRERE
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BOEHEHRNGAEREYR - AFE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Detalils of the changes in RBAEFEARARBSREKSNEIR
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning FREFH2HBRINDOT :
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below:
Company PN
Capital
Share redemption Retained
premium reserve Capital reserve earnings Total
BHRE BXRBEEHE BEAREE REEF P
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FEx FEx FET
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(K 5%) (K1) (B 3%)
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F
— R — B8 774,195 4,528 20,792 241,619 1,041,134
Profit and total comprehensive FERm N &
income for the year FERABE - — — 40,583 40,583
Dividend paid ERRE — - — (99,208) (99,203)
Equity-settled share-based ARG 22
payments L ERE — - 1,114 - 1,114
Bonus issue 4T PE BT (20,272) (4,528) - - (24,800)
Share options exercised SR SSRES1iiE 4,078 - (1,978) - 2,100
Balance as at 31 December 2013 A - ZT— =4
+=-A=+—H
B 45 85 758,001 — 19,928 182,999 960,928
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-_ZT—MF
— A —HW&EH 758,001 — 19,928 182,999 960,928
Profit and total comprehensive F A5 T &
income for the year 2HEABE - - - 34,827 34,827
Issue of new shares BITH RS 75,914 - - — 75,914
Dividend paid B’ E — - (119,524) (119,524)
Share options exercised [SR: SSRESTiie 759 - (248) - 511
Share options forfeited or lapsed & 38 U =k % &%
R RS — — (529) 529 -
Repurchase of own shares & B K & iR 1p
— Par value paid —BfHEE — - - - -
— Premium paid —BftEE — - - (1,712) (1,712)
— Transfer between reserves — EEEE R — 109 - (109) -
Balance as at 31 December 2014 pA —Z — P04
+=-A=+—8”
B 7 B4 834,674 109 19,151 97,010 950,944
Note: Hiat -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature and EHFEEIHEEREN . FEEZEY
purpose of reserves. RMIFE o
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17. Trade and Other Payables 17 ESZRHEMWENKIE
Group Company
REE /N

2014 2013 2014 2013
—z-ms EEEEEE -z-ns EEEEE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T8 Fis T Fis

Trade payables E SR IE 5,054,770 4,671,792 =
Other payables and accruals  H fth & (< Z I8 &

FEH FR 1B 427,186 438,119 28 30
Deferred income (Note (d)) IR A (KT 7% (q) 21,660 30,092 —

5,503,616 5,140,003 28
Less: non-current deferred B FE BN HR IR I AR A

income (Note (d) (Kt 5t () (7,502) (14,656) -
5,496,114 5,125,347
(@)  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 @ AEEZHEFRAAEERLEZ
days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables by ZEHN FI0EWH- B 5 EH
invoice date is as follows: REREZEHI D> BRI
NN
Group
TEE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
0 - 60 days 0Z60H 4,988,507 4,567,897
Over 60 days HBimeoH 66,263 108,895

5,054,770 4,671,792
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17. Trade and Other Payables continued) 17 ESZRHEMEBENKE @
(o)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables (by invoice b)) EBESREMENZKEBGREZHEH)

date) were denominated in the following currencies: BREEN T EEEE
Group Company
EE AAHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
B T iy T ——

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET TR FHET
HK$ BT 17,799 12,934 30

RMB AR 2,618,505 2,399,682 —

us$ ET 2,048,520 2,217,267 —

S$ o T 265,538 202,202 —

THB BN 389,174 267,250 —

RP EfEE 156,578 26,012 —
5,496,114 5,125,347 30
() Included in other payables and accruals is an amount © HMENREREGFRELDSR
HK$2,710,000 (2013: HK$45,200,000) which relates to forward AEBERHIIESOH S E

foreign exchange contracts. The net notional amount of forward 2,710,000/ 7T( = F — = %
foreign exchange contracts has been disclosed in note 3.1(a). 45,200,000 7T ) © & HIHME & 479

FAECTHORMESAQEE -

(d) Deferred income and expenses relate to fees billed/paid in 0 BLERARMZHERBREESLD
advance on service maintenance contracts. MBEERERE SRHEREH-
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18. Deferred Taxation 18. IEEB H
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under BLEBBENEZBEELIREFEEZEES2H
the liability method. FTE -
Movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: BELEREEE/(AE) FHEEHOT
Group
&
2014 2013
—E-—OF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1 January Kn—A—H 17,275 26,122
Credited to the consolidated income FFAGREBRREER
statement (Note 24) (Ktit24) (1,891) (8,288)
Exchange difference fE X ZE5 2,226 (559)
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 17,610 17,275
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FAMRENIBEERBGEEEZY W
year are as follows: T
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=
Deferred tax assets — Inventories and B IBEBEE— HK$’000 HK$’000
trade receivables provisions FERESEWFERE THT FHET
At 1 January R—H—H 54,578 55,735
Credited to the consolidated income statement 5+ A 4R & B2 & (2,583) (409)
Exchange difference E X =% 2,038 (748)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 54,033 54,578
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18. Deferred Taxation continueq)

19.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

18.

iR FE B4 I8 (1)
Group
REME

2014
—E-m#F
HK$°000
TR

(37,303)
692
188

Deferred tax liabilities — EEBBREE—
Accelerated tax depreciation and others MEREBERERHAM
At 1 January n—A—H

Charged to the consolidated income statement R4 & B X NK
Exchange difference e X Z5

At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H

(36,423)

Included in “others” are deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of
undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in the PRC of
HK$24,484,000 (2013: HK$27,102,000).

Borrowings

19.

2013

HK$’000
TR

(29,6193)
(7,879)
189

(37,309)

(BBt ARRPEMNINTERE
TENRDIREFERHELCEHIEAE
24,484,000 7T (— T — =4 : 27,102,000

BT °

ER=t
Group
rEE
2014
—E-MmEF
HK$’000
THET

376

376

3,532,379
24,286
235

3,556,900

Non-current kKB
Unsecured bank borrowings AR ITEE
Finance lease liabilities MEHESAE
Current B

Unsecured bank borrowings E|ILERITIEE
Secured mortgage loan BEMRIEZBER
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE
Total borrowings miEs

3,657,276

Annual Report 2014

2013

HK$'000
TET

696,276
221

696,497

1,974,066
27,850
160

2,002,076
2,698,573
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19. Borrowings continued)

Notes:

(@)

Unsecured bank borrowings

The loans are unsecured and bear interest at rates as disclosed in section
(e) below. As at 31 December 2014, all of the loans are repayable within
twelve months. As at 31 December 2013, the loans were repayable within
twelve months except for syndicated loans in the amount of
HK$696,276,000 which were repayable on 29 September 2015.

Secured mortgage loan

The loan is secured by a building with net book value of HK$58,250,000
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$59,552,000). The loan contains a
repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid
after one year of HK$20,722,000 (2013: HK$24,286,000) is classified as
current.

Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(@)
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—ME+ZA=+—BLFE

19. B E @)

e

EIKARITEE
,\/Aﬁﬂﬁﬁ&&Ty() & % 78 2 F
RAB -R-_T—NFE+-A=+—
H HTEERERTZ@EAREE R
—E-=F+ZA=+—H ' BRER
+ =18 B W{&EE - 1696,276,000% T2

BEERER-_ZTE—RAFALA=-_TAN
AEE-

EHEBIRBER
RZE—WF+_A=+—H0 BEXAH

BR @ )% & 458,250,000 T (— T — =
1 59,552,000/ L) Z IEF IR I IF o
HERE A AR EREEEER M
R — F 1% (88 /61D B 3820,722,0007%8
T(ZE—=%F: 24286000/%7c> 2
AENER o

MEMOEE
HRENEHREEENRANGERET
HEA gHEEEERAEM-

Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-@OF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Gross finance lease liabilities MmEHERER %ﬁ
— minimum lease payments: — &EHEE KT
Within 1 year 15 R 191
Between 1 and 5 years 1FE5F 258
449
Future finance charges on finance leases BMEBEMARKREEH (68)
381
The present value of finance lease liabilities MEMERENHREENT
is as follows:
Within 1 year 1F R 160
Between 1 and 5 years 1FE5F 221
381
BEHEZERERQA — I 4F F 5]
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H .
19. Borrowings continved 19. B & @)
Notes: (Continued) Bt (&)
(d)  The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: d ZAEHEEEENEERNT:

Group
RER
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total
BITHE MEHEEE A%
2014 2013 2014 2013
CE-NF pmamkal — T[T EmSaal — T[T e
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET THET FHET THET FHET

Within 1 year 18R LGN 2,001,916 235 160 BESEEHNN 2,002,076
Between 1 and 2 years 1FE2F = 696,276 376 221 376 696,497
LGN 2,698,192 611 381 <Lyl 2,698,573
The effective interest rates were as follows: FEMEMT
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
Unsecured bank borrowings MIEPIRITEE 1.34%-5.6% 1.29%-12.5%
Secured mortgage loan EiIRFIZEER 1.39% 1.15%
Finance lease liabilities MELEEE 4.00%-5.74% 4.00%-7.00%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. EEHNEmEHEEAFTEEAE -
The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the EENEEMEN T EEEE

following currencies:

Group

AEE
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T F T
HK$ BT 24,286 47,850
RMB AR 577,332 286,117
Us$ E 2,728,194 2,053,927
S$ s T 55,954 179,589
THB Erd S 170,901 121,738
RP ENfe & 609 9,352

3,557,276 2,698,573
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20. Turnover and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent with
the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this regard,
the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

(@) Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

20.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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EXRERDTHER

DEERNRBASEE &R EBITHRE
BASRTIEABERRLS BEER
REMAEN —Hz2AAmMER - A&
BraaEBTHRERABRESSE -3t
s AEBCESETHRERAS
BUTEEEEZARESHEE
%

WH kR REDBELENHER
REENRX S Foak e

[

BREDRBRMZEAETERDMERE

BIEER DRI EEIER - f’?"JlZDE
ERZEBEME K EH D 88 R 1T
F o

FARSERERD I LFHDEBRA
ZAHmEDMBERMT -

Bt
i
JiE)
E

TEXHOEWT

Segments Principal activities

2 &B FTEXEH

Distribution Distribution of IT products (desktop PCs, notebooks, tablets, handhelds, printers, CPUSs,
hard disks, memory devices, etc) for the commercial and consumer markets.

Polic! fﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\ﬁ%&/ﬁ =4l iﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁiéuu (REEH - FRARER  FHREK 2

Rt FTEIH - PRI RS - EAR -

Enterprise systems

IREE) -

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,

databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.

TERSH HEAREMBISRERSE
BE - BERRETER) -

IT services

& AR 5 BB ERRERG RIIT

SR REGTA (PR BRIERS -

Unix/NT iR 75 25 + 24X

IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

CERE S R RIRTS o

BAZRERQIA —T-HFFRH
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20. Turnover and Segment Information continueq)

124

(@) Business segments continued) @ EBoIw
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are HE-Z—MF+=-A=+—H
as follows: EFENSBEELOT
Enterprise

Distribution systems IT services Group

728 TERE ERARNERE rEE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHERT FERT FERT

Total segment revenue o EP U = 4R EE
Segment results DEPELE
Finance costs B % & A
Share of associates’ profits 431 Bt

Share of joint venture’s

loss
Profit before taxation B B4 AT &
Taxation I8
Profit for the year F R F
Reportable segment assets 7] 8 & 7 &8 & &

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2014

30,573,837
644,091

7,384,372

11,100,914
189,708

2,709,451

217,958
10,098

42,029

41,892,709

843,897
(104,392)

739,505
34,939

(5,415)

769,029
(143,361)

625,668

10,135,852
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20. Turnover and Segment Information continueq) EEHENTHER @
(@) Business segments continued) @ =Hoabe
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are HEz-_FT—=F+=-A=+—H
as follows: IFFENDHEENT -
Enterprise
Distribution systems IT services Group
5 88 PERS EMBERS REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FH T FHET FHET
Total segment revenue 7 BB = AR FE 31,953,879 8,064,408 220,999 40,239,286
Segment results DEPELE 556,042 139,624 11,420 707,086
Finance costs B%ER (81,198)
625,888
Share of associates’ profits 4315 Bt & A )% 7l 33,102
Share of joint venture’s loss S 1h & L ¥ E A (188)
Profit before taxation & 5 B A 658,802
Taxation I8 (138,675)
Profit for the year F A 525,127
Reportable segment assets 7] ¥ &5 0 &0 & & 7,278,939 1,921,495 39,953 9,240,387
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one AEENERPHZTIL BB -4
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the RPBBBARNEBRZI0%HE
Group’s revenue. Distribution revenue from this customer F-RAEZBEFPHDHEBEDE
amounted to approximately HK$6,918,000,000 (2013: 6,918,000,000 L (=& — = 4 :
HK$7,624,000,000). 7,624,000,0008 7T) °
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss b) ARSI WBRERFFEER
> NI
and assets EEMNHEK
Profit i A
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the HROHENEGEEBRERME
consolidated income statement is not presented as the segment | &) 5 1A 5 ) 48 H LA 2 5
profit is the same as the profit for the year presented in the HafEgmaBaiNE RN
consolidated income statement. B HHER ©
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20. Turnover and Segment Information continueq 20 EEHERIHER @
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss b) AHREDHEAHEER
and assets (continuea) EENYER®
Assets BE
2013
—E-NF —ET—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Reportable segment assets Al s D ELE E 10,135,852 9,240,387
Goodwill EES 324,001 333,052
Interest in associates REEE R AR 322,780 315,467
Interests in joint venture REeEELENER 67,385 23,041
Deferred tax assets BELERIBEE 54,033 54,578
Other receivables and prepayments H b FE USRI K TE S FUE 730,262 392,602
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEBY 1,495,111 1,168,535
Consolidated total assets LABEE 13,129,424 11,527,662
(c) Geographical information € HEEFR
The Group’s two business segments operate principally in North AEEBNMEEB >SS EELALL
Asia and South East Asia. DRRERREE -
2014 2013
—ZE—mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Revenue W =
North Asia it dp 33,195,293 31,485,864
South East Asia W 8,697,416 8,753,422
Total segment revenue o EPUR 2E AR A 41,892,709 40,239,286

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer

is located.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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20. Turnover and Segment Information continued) 20 EEHENRTHER »
(c) Geographical information continued) € MHEER )

2014 2013
—F-MmF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FET

Assets BE
North Asia k] 8,064,477 7,303,538
South East Asia REar 2,071,375 1,936,849
Reportable segment assets AIREDHEE 10,135,852 9,240,387
Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the HEEREEEPMALM

assets are located.

21. Other Gains, Net 21. &
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Interest income B U A 16,618 10,110
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEMREZEIR
equipment (45) (106)
Net exchange (loss)/gain BE X (E518), e g5 (13,788) 34,114
Other H 12,554 12,051

15,339 56,169
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22.

23.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

—ME+ZA=+—RILEFEE

%«””“*u

2014
—z-mE
HK$’000
T

40,165,374

362,912

Operating Profit 22. & =&
Operating profit is derived after charging the following: R AT
Cost of inventories FERAR
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments EIXAN(BHEEEND)

— Salaries, allowances and welfare - %? ® R RER

— Provident fund contributions —AEEHER

Equity-settled share-based payment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
premises and warehouse
Auditors’ remuneration
— audit fee
— non-audit fee
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Provision for and write off of inventories
Provision for and net write off/on of
trade receivables

LAHxT’ﬁSEHZEE*E%ZMIE
MERERZEEMERS

% 2R B &
—EZEM

— B EM
ME BERREINE

Tf‘f%ﬁ&fvﬁkiﬁ
B 5 18 W R TE B R g,
AE\’E/?%E\

52,331

Finance Costs

23.

B%EH

2014
—F-NF
HK$’000
TERT

Interest expense on:
— Bank overdrafts
— Unsecured bank borrowings
— Secured mortgage loan
— Finance lease liabilities

TSR ZMBRAX
—RITEX
—EEMRITEE
—BEMRBENR
—MEHEAB

12
103,975
362

43

104,392

Annual Report 2014

THEHIBR AT BIEME

2013
HK$'000
TAET

38,734,828

382,753
52,116
1,114

57,676

5,584
2,198

19,805
3,936

58,652

HK$'000
TAET

25
80,700
343
130
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24. Taxation 24, Bi1E
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement RigeEmRNBR 2 RMIBEEIIE
represents:
2014 2013
—E-NEF —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FHET
Current taxation RNEABIIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEHR 36,455 48,721
— Overseas taxation — BHNELIE 104,163 76,761
Under/(over)-provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax @BEFFEFBNESHBEE T
in prior years (B%8) B # (14)
Under/(over)-provision of overseas taxation BAFEBIIFERENR
in prior years (H8%8) B 15 848 81
Deferred taxation (Note 18) IEIETRIE (ff 7 18) 1,891 8,288
143,361 138,675
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: EENGEHNDEBE_ZT-—HFE+ =
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 A=+ B LEFERFTERM G A
December 2014. 16.5% WX (Z T — =4 : 16.6%) st 12 &
1% o
Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated Y ONEL IR IR 6 ) 2 4 BT AR B s B LA R
assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing in the EHETEELREMEERERFHRE
countries in which the entities comprising the Group operate. FHE-
A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect RABEMIIEEECER_TTENF —
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment A—R%&BEGFTEENRE DK
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008. mmEEB R ABKS%TERT
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24 . TaxatIO n (continued)

—ME+ZA=+—RILEFEE

24. BIE )

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

AEEGRHASEN 2 HBERERTAR
EERELZEWERIERNT

Kong as follows:

2014 2013
—E-F —E—=
HK$°000 HK$ OOO
Profit before taxation Fx 754 B & 769,029 658,802
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% R E16.5%:t & 126,890 108,702
Effect of different tax rates in different tax T~ H M EERTRME 2
jurisdictions za 391 4,915
Income not subject to taxation BAERBE 2 WA (7,926) (1,996)
Expenses not deductible for RBBME TEIRZHAX
taxation purposes 12,498 12,598
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFE ?ﬁ HERR /(5 BE e (88)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets WEBRRREREEEDN
were recognised TIBE 1 1,510 1,503
Tax effect of withholding tax on profit of AR BB A R B FE IR R A
the PRC subsidiaries M2 9,284 8,041
Taxation charge MBS H 143,361 133,675

25. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is dealt with in the financial statements

ZF" AEREE AER
/fm*]

BE-_Z-WNF+_A=1T—HLLF
BZ2ARRBAREHEARELENAHK

of the Company to the extent of HK$34,827,000 (2013: 34,827,000/% 7T (— & — = : 40,583,000
HK$40,583,000). BN AR AR BEBMKRPERE o
26. Dividends 26. Bz 2
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FAEGEENSTARDAE
Company attributable to the year HmEFEBEARE
2014 2013
—E-NF —EF—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Final dividend proposed after the balance REEREBRERBRE TR
sheet date of HK11.8 cents TR 11.87 1l
(2013: HK8 cents) per ordinary share (_ —Z=F 8B 180,000 120,000

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
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26 DIVIdendS (continued)

(i

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year

26.

RE )

(i) FEAHERIKST £ — 8K
FEELMESFTFRAARE

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year of HK8 cents (2013: HK8 cents)
per ordinary share

FRHEE MR B B E— B
FENRAR ST BR
S (— T —=4F : 8/81l)

mEEARE
2014 2013
—E-NF —ET—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tz FHET
119,524 99,203

27. Earnings Per Share

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$607,374,000 (2013: HK$502,725,000) and the weighted average
of 1,496,419,000 shares in issue (2013: 1,488,817,000 shares in issue

271.

BRER

SRS

NEETRERAR ERNQBERSF
B A JE 15 % F1607,374,000% T (=T —
= : 502,725,000 7t) K B #E T KRG
2 DNFEF ¥ $11,496,419,000/ (—Z & — =

taking into account the effect of the bonus issue as stated in note 14). £ 1 1,488,817,000/%) 5t & + W &&=t K K
ARSI R BT E -
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —E—=
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—HE#TT@ERKR (TR’

(thousands) 1,494,044 1,488,044
Exercise of share options (thousands) 1TIE R (F 1) 42 773
Issued new shares (thousands) BEITH Y (F ) 2,981 -
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) BB H G (FR) (648) -
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ A=+—B %@

shares as at 31 December (thousands) FHE (TR’ 1,496,419 1,488,817
Basic earnings per share % FE A 2 7

(HK cents per share) (5 B 40.59 33.77

*Adjusted for the bonus issue in 2013

BRI -ZFEMARETELRAE

BHERERAA —T-NFFR
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27. Earnings Per Share continued) 27. BB F »)
Diluted #5E
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based on AEESREFRFNDRARBER
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of B A A FE 15 % 607,374,000 T (= =
HK$607,374,000 (2013: HK$502,725,000) and the weighted average — = 4F : 502,725,000 7T ) M A% 15 o0 4
number of shares of 1,496,672,000 (2013: 1,488,817,000 shares®), 15 $01,496,672,000 ( = T — = F ¢
adjusted for the bonus issue during the year (note 14) calculated as 1,488,817,000%*) (B 5t F MBI AT B 3817
follows: (M1 ERRARB)GEWT
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
Weighted average number of 21T T AR I
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) FHE(FRR) 1,496,419 1,488,817*
Adjustment for assumed conversion of BEBERIEZEER
share options (thousands) FHE(F 1) 253 -
Weighted average number of RN 2 & B
ordinary shares for diluted earnings INRE & (F )
per share (thousands) 1,496,672 1,488,817
Diluted earnings per share % 2 5 23 A
(HK cents per share) €=3:93(1I)) 40.58 33.77
* Adjusted for the bonus issue in 2013 BRI E=FRARBITELRAR
- : = 4 s
28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREANEEEMNSE
Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ E=EMe
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RERNENKENTARAAES
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: ZMe@EmT
2014 2013
—E—MF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Fees e 667 986
Other emoluments H A B2
— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EAHFEREEZEMN 9,716 8,817
— Discretionary bonus — BIBIEAD 4,845 7,627
— Contributions to pension scheme —RIRETEIMH R 177 212
— Equity-settled share-based payments — U EmER - 802
IR

18,444
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

2. EERNESREEEMS

Emoluments continved) ()
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continuea) @ ZEE=EME @
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 REE-Z—HWF+=-_A=+—8H
December 2014 is set out below: IHFE SEZBZ2HNHIWOT :
Basic salaries Contribution
and housing Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
EXFER BIRGEHE
EERE e EERR MERA #HER &5t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FER TET FTER T TER

Executive Directors
Li Jialin
Chow Ying Chi
Ong Wei Hiam, William
Chan Hoi Chau

Non-executive Directors
Liu Li
Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive
Directors
Lam Hin Chi
Chan Po Fun, Peter
Li Wei
Ng Yat Cheung

WITE=S
FEM
PRE
TEN
CYEI

J 1T
213
R

BIEITES
Emy 65
PR X 55 35

e 120
RAE 120

15,405

BHERERAA —T-NFFR
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28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREANEEEMNSE
Emoluments ontinue) ()
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EE=EM<E@
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 RBE-_ZT—=F+-_/8=+—
December 2013 is set out below: HEFE SESFZ2HMNE @
T~
Basic salaries Contribution  Equity-settled
and housing Discretionary  to pension  share-based
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme payments Total
LARR 5 2 A
EXFHa Rk RIRGTE 2 RH&EE
e we RFBERERN BBEEL TN IB At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT TAET THEx
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin FEMK — 1,387 3,620 11 232 5,250
Chow Ying Chi P B - 987 1,225 111 105 2,428
Ong Wei Hiam, William FEHT 71 2,612 760 15 186 3,644
Chan Hoi Chau R g N - 786 720 15 186 1,707
Mao Xianggian ESAGED) — 614 — 23 — 637
Non-executive Directors FEWMITES
Liu Li 21| %] 120 — — — — 120
Liang Xin 2R 5 - - - - 5
Tay Eng Hoe B 5K AN 410 2,431 1,302 37 31 4,211

Independent Non-executive ~ ¥8 37 JEE1TEE =

Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter PR 25 140 — — — 31 171
Li Wei ey 120 — — — 31 151
Ng Yat Cheung RHEE 120 - - - - 120
986 8,817 7,627 212 802 18,444
Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately ExXmEBECEEWeBEIN
HK$340,000 (2013: HK$442,000) paid to independent Non- T8 7 3E 1T E = 8 £9340,000 %
executive Directors. TT(ZFE—=4% : 442,000/ 7T) °
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an FABERZE AL AN
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation S(ZE—=F:FT&) EFAR
for loss of office during the year (2013: HK$NIl). SIEEMAREEKEEMNMAR
SEE RERIERBERHE -
During the year, no Director of the Company waived any RERN - RNA R EE I RKE WE
emoluments (2013: HK$NIl). FRME(ZE—=F - FHFT)
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28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREREEEME
Emoluments continued) ()
(b) Five highest paid individuals b REEESHFHAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included one (2013: two) Director whose
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2013: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances AR KER
Discretionary bonuses M IBTEAL
Contributions to pension schemes RIRET IR

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

AEEFAZAEMEES AL
BE—R(ZE—Z=ZF WA =E
FHREZHEE R EXFENZ
AP REE - RERZN FHHN
H(ZE—ZF: ZEZ)ALTZEE
U

2014 2013
—E-NF —EF—=

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTRET FHET

6,778 5,535

10,170 11,483

597 96

17,545 17,114

e FToEE :

Number of individuals
A
2014 2013
—E-F —ET—=F

Emolument band B <& &

HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T & 4,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T & 4,500,000 7% 7T
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7% 7T & 5,000,000 7T
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7 7T £ 5,500,000 7 7T
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 % 7T & 8,500,000 7T

P
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 29. Z &R &K EHR KM=

(@) Be}:onciliatitoré (%f profit befotr_e taxation to net cash (used @ & B AT H R HE &R
In)/generated Trom operations (NI
/g P Fl),/ iR FE 2 U
2014 2013
—E-MF —EF—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Profit before taxation % B4 Bi s A 769,029 658,802
Interest income B U A (16,618) (10,110)
Interest expense B 104,392 81,198
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENEEBITE
equipment 19,613 19,805
Share of associates’ profits DAEEE A RE (34,939) (33,102
Share of joint venture’s loss DIEEEDEEIE 5,415 188
Equity-settled share-based payment Utz EsEE
IE — 1,114
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME BERREZ
and equipment ] 45 106
Operating profit before working capital LEEEFHH LLE
changes S A 846,837 718,001
Changes in working capital BELELE
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Kk H b Y FRIE (790,598) (1,512,923)
Inventories FE (440,662) 78,653
Trade and other payables B 5 M H MR FRIE 363,613 849,838
Net cash (used in)/generated from &L (A, FT1EIR S F5E
operations (20,810) 133,569
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &= =T —OMF+_A=+—HI-FE

Capital commitments ()

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2014 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

30. &I

BAEIE
R-T-mET-A=+—AH
KRB MK M AHEB R 2 K E
EARAENT

2014 2013
—E-F —E—=

HK$’000 HK$°000

THER FHET

ERIHBEYE

Contracted for purchase property

120,613 -

Commitments under operating leases (b)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
as follows:

KREMHEERET 2 &L

RZE—NMF+—A=+—H ' &
EERBETABEz2KLEREM
EEZHEREHRENSRKEED
™

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

1F R
1FEB5F

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHxT FHET
44,722 35,505
55,566 25,544
100,288 61,049

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and
items of plant and machinery and office equipment held under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to three years, with an option to renew each lease upon
expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

AEERSZEANERAEERE
FREZBEREMNARBERAER
WIRBZABEAN - BHZNTFH
—RAE-—E=F RENBOIH
BRABEEHINEFENERD
mEGR BEEOEEXAE
%o

BAZRERQIA —T-HFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ T —WF+_A=+—HILFE

31. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Director’s quarter

On 1 November 2013, the Group entered into a rental agreement
with Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr.
Li Jialin (“Mr. Li"), the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company is a major shareholder, in respect of a director’s
quarter. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly
rental of HK$200,000 to Joint Honour Development Limited (2013:
monthly rental of HK$200,000 from 1 November 2013 to 31
December 2014).

License fee

The Group also entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind
Co., a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co., (2013: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 28)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$72,329,000
(2013: HK$65,048,000) during the year.

Annual Report 2014

NN.HEALRES

NTREBEALTETZIRS

(@

EEBE

RZE—=F+—HA—H £&%H
BARNBERERZVITESTTEM
EETFEREDABEITERFEZA
AEFRERERAAIGE—HES
BEN—DHEERE - BIEZD
FOAKEMEFERERAANX
t A #200,000 L (=2 — =4 :
H-_Z—=F+—A—HEEZ
E-ME+-_A=+—HIAHE
200,000/& 7T) °

AR B

AN F

AREETHETEEAFTEREN
ANRIEEEEQNAG L —HDHE-
BREZBE ~A5SEEHFES
iR RS A TR E 14,0008
TFAEBERR (T —ZF:
14,0008 7T) °

TEEEAEME(BE
R FE28 4% 5B < & 5R)

FR o FBEEA BB A72,329,000
BT (= T — = 4 :65,048,000/8
JC) °
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New R.BE-ZE-HENFEFT=A
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not =+ -HILEFECHEM
iet Effective for the year ended 31 December BREARERZIER - #

014 f%&a%ﬂ%%%z
oE

BEEUHERBHRR2TERAY TS
AMASERMRBE_T—NF+ =
AZ+ - BLEFERARERBITRR
It 55 B 75 TR AR R AR 2 BURE R DA R &

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group:

Al BREUATARREREEERE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTHBEHRIZE

HROEFTHBENR

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plans: BESHERNE19N  REFSFE - 1 July 2014
Employee contributions 1E S B8R —E-—m&E+HA—AH
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle H A BRELB| - E—FFF 1 July 2014
—E - F A FENE —E-MNFELA—H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle & BB KM E LR —E——FF 1 July 2014
ZE—CFE FEACE —E—pNFEtA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting BB HREEDEI15R - WE 1 January 2016
for acquisitions of interests in joint operations BEKERBEZ B @A 218E] —E—XE—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

ERGENE 1R LB BT LR
EIBW - BBEAKRZITER

B EZER]
R BEWMEEAEGI - K 5 M
EPET &K Z LA

BEPBHEEAESR £HTA

1 January 2016
—E—R"F—-A—H
1 January 2017
—T—+F—H—H
1 January 2018
—Z-NF—HA—H

AEBEAEFEZFEITINERERB
MzEBTrE - -BEEAMAL A%E
RREMZEFETLTARARLEHES
MBHREREATE -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Summary

BB E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out below:

Results
A 173 i
E 4
Turnover EEHR
Profit before taxation BB BT s A
Taxation 1A
Profit for the year/period F /R F
Attributable to: AT AT B
Equity Shareholders of ARNRERIZTEA
the Company
Non-controlling JE7 R i

interests

Assets and Liabilities

EERARE

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities #EE
Total equity R

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2014

Year ended

31 December
2014
HE-Z-NF
+=A=+—-H
LEE
HK$’000

TERT
41,892,709

769,029
(143,361)

625,668

607,374

18,294

625,668

As at

31 December
2014
R-Z2-0Of
—A=t—-H
HK$’000
TERT

13,129,424
9,136,466

3,992,958

Year ended
31 December

Year ended
31 December

Year ended
31 December

AEBBETBEYRERZEEANREESR
BEBEHINOT

Year ended
31 December

2013 2012 2011 2010
BE-Z—=F HZET-—-F BE_ZT——F BEZT-Z%
+-A=+—-8 +ZA=+—-8B +=ZB=+—H +=ZA=t+—H

LFE LFE LFE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET FET
40,239,286 37,097,592 32,617,058 26,212,600
658,802 571,561 634,581 510,363
(133,675) (107,162) (145,787) (102,305)
525,127 464,399 488,794 408,058
502,725 444,236 462,516 370,280
22,402 20,163 26,278 37,778
525,127 464,399 488,794 408,058
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010
RZE—=F RZT—=F RZFE——%F RZZE-ZF
+tZA=t—-A +zZA=+-A +ZA=t+—-H +ZA=1—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET TET
11,527,662 9,847,426 8,545,115 7,905,510
(7,907,262) (6,612,744) (5,747,886) (5,5679,178)
3,620,400 3,234,682 2,797,229 2,326,332
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